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Audit Report
BDO AR [2019] No. ZB10967

To all shareholders of Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation:

1. Qualified Audit Opinion

We have audited the attached financial statements of Zhongrun Resources Investment
Corporation (ZRC), including the Consolidated Balance Sheet (dated 31 December 2018),
Balance Sheet of Parent Company (dated 31 December 2018), Consolidated Profit and Loss
Statement, Profit and Loss Statement of Parent Company, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
Cash Flow Statement of Parent Company, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owner’s
Equity, Statement of Changes in Owner’s Equity of Parent Company, and Notes to Financial
Statement.

We believe that except the impact of the matters described in the “Basis for Formation of
Qualified Audit Opinions™ section, the attached financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises in all
material respects, and they have fairly reflected the financial positions of ZRC as of December
31, 2018 and the operating results and cash flow of ZRC in 2018, both on a consolidated basis
and of the parent company.

2. Basis for Formation of Qualified Audit Opinions

(1} As stated in Note XIII (8) 1 to the financial statements, as of December 31, 2018, ZRC was
entitled to receive an earnest money of US$80.00 million from Li Xiaoming, equivalent to
RMB 549,056,000. A bad debt provision of RMB 109,811,200 was made according to the
account age method. As of the date of the audit report, we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence on the bad debt provision made for the creditor’s right to Li
Xiaoming and we could not determine whether it is necessary to adjust the balance of the
earnest money owed by Li Xiaoming and the bad debt provision.

(2) As stated in Note X1l (8)8 to the financial statements, as of December 31, 2018, ZRC is
entitled to receive a debt repayment of RMB 48,933,800 from PESI Co., Ltd. (“PESI”
hereinafter). A bad debt provision of RMB 9,389,800 was made according to the account age
method. As of the date of the audit report, we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence on bad debt provision made for the creditor’s right to PESI and we could not
determine whether it is necessary to adjust the balance of the earnest money owed by PESI
and the bad debt provision.

We conducted the audit in accordance with the Chinese Certified Public Accountant Auditing
Standards. The “CPA's Responsibility for Auditing Financial Statements” section of the audit
report further elaborates our responsibilities under these guidelines. According to the Code of



Ethics for Chinese Certified Public Accountants, we are independent of ZRC and fulfill other
professional ethics duties. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for expressing qualified opinions.

3. Matters to be Noted

The users of the financial statements are reminded to note that, as stated in Note XIII (7)2 to
the financial statements, ZRC is entitled to an debt repayment of RMB 166,943,000 (book
value) owed by Qilu Real Estate Co., Ltd., of which the account age exceeded 5 years and a
bad debt provision of RMB 166,943,000 was made. The court ruled Qilu Real Estate Co., Ltd.
to repay the debt by a house valued RMB 98,280,200, but the property right transfer
procedures have not been completed yet. Therefore the bad debt provision was not carried
forward. It does not affect the audit opinions expressed by us.

4. Key Audit Matters

The key audit matters are the matters that we believe are most important for the audit of the
current financial statements based on professional judgment. The response to these matters is
based on the overall audit of the financial statements and the formation of audit opinion. We
do not comment on these matters separately. In addition to the matters described in the “Basis
for Formation of Qualified Audit Opinions™ section, we determine that the following matters
are the key audit matters that need to be communicated in the audit report.

Key Audit Matters Response in Audit

(1) Net realizable value of inventories

Refer to the accounting policies stated in note
12 of “I11. Major accounting policies and
accounting estimates followed by ZRC” and
note 5 of “V. Notes to ltems of Consolidated
Financial Statement”.

As of December 31, 2018, the book balance of
raw materials, unfinished products,
development costs, development products and
auxiliary materials (hereinafter referred to as
“inventories™) of ZRC was RMB
444,085,264.05, the depreciation provision was
RMB 19,493,622.47, and the book value was
RMB 424,591,641.58 accounting for 16.76%
of the total assets. The inventories are
measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value.

As of the balance sheet date, the inventories
are measured at the lower of the cost and the

The audit procedures performed by us for
evaluating the net realizable value of inventories
include:

(1) Understand the key internal control related to
the net realizable value of inventories, evaluate the
design of such control, determine if it is
implemented, and test the operational effectiveness
of the relevant internal control;

(2) Review the management’s forecast on the
actual net realizable value of inventories and the
actual operating results in previous years, to
evaluate the accuracy of management's forecast.

(3) Obtain the calculations made by ZRC on the
depreciation provision of inventories and test
whether the management's calculation of the net
realizable value of inventories is accurate;




net realizable value, and the depreciation
provision was made based on the difference
between the cost and the net realizable value of
the inventories. Considering the purpose of
holding the inventories, the management
determines the net realizable value of
inventories based on the estimated selling price
less the costs and expenses to be incurred until
the completion, estimated sclling costs, and
relevant taxes. The estimated selling price is
determined according to the contracted selling
price, the market price of same or similar
products, and other factors. This process
involves significant judgment and estimates of
the management,

We have identified the evaluation of the net
realizable value of the inventories of ZRC as
key audit matter because the estimation of
development costs and future selling prices of
the developed products involves inherent risks,
and the estimates and judgment used to
calculate the net realizable value involve the
risk of management bias.

For real estate:

(1) Locally observe the inventories on a sampling
basis, and ask about the progress of these
inventories and the total estimated development
cost reflected in the latest forecasts for each item;

(2) Make sensitivity analysis to determine the
extent to which such estimates result in a material
misstatement of the development project, and
consider the likelihood of such changes in key
estimates and assumptions, as well as the potential
management bias;

For gold mine:

(1) Obtain the selling price in open market,
independently query the price information in the
open market, and compare it with the estimated
selling price;

(2) By inventories supervision, check whether any
item of the closing inventories has long account
age, outdated model, and other problems, and
evaluate whether the management has reasonably
estimated the net realizable value.

5. Additional Information

The management of ZRC is responsible for additional information. Additional information
includes the information covered in 2018 annual report of ZRC, but does not include the
financial statements and our audit report.

Our audit opinions expressed on the financial statements do not cover additional information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion on additional information.

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
additional information. In the process, we consider whether there is any significant
inconsistency or other material misstatement with what we have obtained from the financial
statements or what we have learned during the audit process.

Based on the work we have performed, if we determine that there is a material misstatement in
the additional information, we should report that fact. As stated above in "Basis for Formation
of Qualified Audit Opinion" section, we are unable to obtain adequate and appropriate audit
evidence on the recoverable amount from Li Xiaoming in other receivables, and it is not
possible to determine whether it is necessary to make adjustments to the balance of other



receivables and bad debt provision above. Therefore, except the impact of the matters
described in the “Basis for Formation of Qualified Audit Opinion” section above on the
related amount or other items in the 2018 Annual Report of ZRC, no material information has
been found to be materially misrepresented.

6 Management and Governance’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements

The management is responsible for preparing financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to enable them to achieve
fair reflection and design, implementation and maintenance of necessary internal controls so
that there are no material misstatements due to fraud or errors in the financial statements.

In the preparation of the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing
ZRC’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing issues related to going-concern (if
applicable), and applying the going concern assumption unless the management plans to
liquidate ZRC, terminate operations or has no other realistic choices.

The governance is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of ZRC.

7 Auditor's Responsibility for Audited Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the entire financial statements
are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error and to issue an audit report
containing audit opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not
guarantee that in an audit performed in accordance with auditing standards, the major
misstatement can always be discovered when it exists. Misstatement may be caused by fraud
or error, and if as reasonably expected, a misstatement, along or with other information, may
affect the economic decision made by the users of financial statements based on the financial
statements, such misstatement is generally considered to be material.

In the process of conducting the audit work in accordance with auditing standards, we use
professional judgment and maintain professional suspicion. At the same time, we also perform
the following tasks:

(1). Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of financial statements due to fraud
or errors, design and implement audit procedures to address these risks, and obtain
adequate and appropriate audit evidence as a basis for issuing audit opinions. Since fraud
may involve collusion, falsification, intentional omission, misrepresentation or override of
internal controls, the risk of failing to detect a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of failure to detect a material misstatement due to an error.

(2). Understand audit-related internal controls to design appropriate audit procedures.

(3). Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted by the management and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures.

(4). Draw conclusions on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going-concern
assumption. Based on the audit evidence obtained, give conclusions as to whether there



are significant uncertainties in the matters or circumstances that have significant doubts
about the sustainability of ZRC. If we conclude that there are significant uncertainties, the
auditing standards require us to request the users of the report to pay attention to the
relevant disclosures in the financial statements in the audit report; if the disclosure is not
sufficient, we should express unqualified opinions. Our conclusions are based on the
information available as of the date of the audit report. However, future events or
circumstances may result in the inability of ZRC to continue operating.

(5). Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content (including disclosure) of the
financial statements and evaluate whether the financial statements fairly reflect the
relevant transactions and events.

(6). Obtain adequate and appropriate audit evidence on the financial information of entities
or business activities of ZRC to express audit opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for guiding, supervising and implementing the group audit and assume full
responsibility for the audit opinion.

We communicate with the governance on the planned audit scope, timing, and major audit
findings, including communication of the internal control deficiencies that we identified
during the audit.

We also provide a statement to the management on compliance with ethical requirements
related to independence, and communicate with the management on all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be considered to affect our independence, as well as related
preventive measures (if applicable).

From the matters communicated with the governance, we determine which items are most
important for the audit of the financial statements of the current period and thus constitute the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report, unless laws and regulations
prohibit the public disclosure of these matters, or in rare cases, if it is reasonably expected that
the negative consequences of communicating something in the audit report will outweigh the
benefits in the public interest, we determine that the matter should not be communicated in the
audit report.



BDO China Shu Lun Pan CPA (Special General Partnership)

Registered accountant of China: {Project Partner)

Registered accountant of China:

Shanghai * China

April 25, 2019



Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2018

(All amounts are expressed in Chinese yuan (RMB) unless other specified.)

Assets

Note V

Closing Balance

Opening Balance

Current assets:

Monetary funds

(1)

50,289,684.65

104,668,890.25

Cash reserves for settlement

Lending funds

Financial assets measured at fair value with the
changes in fair value recognized in the custent
rofit and {oss

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable and account receivable

)

4,505,364.61

9,366,920.90

Prepayment

3

20,317,507.52

54,518,086.91

Premium receivable

Reinsurance premium recejvable

Provision of cession receivable

Other receivables

(C))

879,294 455.24

776,667,317.70

Redemptory financial assets for sale

inventories

(&)

424,591,641.58

517,305,733.17

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets due within one year

Other current assets

6

25,986,775.33

29,529,497.17

Total of current assets

1,404,985,428.93

1,492,056,446.10

Non-current assets:

Issued loan and advances

Available-for-sale financial assets

()

6,045,719.99

12,872,227.49

Held-to-maturity investment

Long-term accounts receivable

Long-term equity investment

(8}

31,388,101.39

Investment property

®

214,897,015.05

163,277,527.18

Fixed assets

(10

566,676,700.27

566,067,114.89

Construction in progress

(11

35,641,662.53

13,255,249.03

Productive biological assets

0il and gas assets

Intangible assets

(2)

224,830,828.77

250,186,197.24

Development expenditure

Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses

Deferred income tax assets

(13)

46,094,916.91

46,138,060.95

Other non-current assets

(14)

2,200,283.02

3,524,519.32

Total non-current assets

1,127,775,227.93

1,055,320,896.10

Total assets

2,532,760,656.86

2,547,377,342.20

The attached notes constitute part of the financial statement.

Legal Representative:

Accountant:

Accounting leader:




Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

As of December 31, 2018

(All amounts are expressed in Chinese yuan (RMB) unless other specified.)

Liabilities and Owner's Equity

Note
v

Closing Balance

Opening Balance

Current liabilities;

Short-term borrowings

{us)

355,394,742.72

407,626,947.78

Borrowings from central bank

Deposits from customers and other banks

Borrowing funds

Financial liabilities measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognized in the current profits and

losses

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable and accounts payable

(16)

259,049,408.25

212,021,678.50

Advances received

(a7

170,148,315.94

196,727,362.87

Financial assets sold for repurchase

Handling charge and commission payable

Payroll payable

(18)

19,764,908.98

15,967,986.54

Tax payable

(19

2,602,486.30

4,389,733.01

Other accounts payable

20)

486,067,281.09

418,226,945.63

Dividend payable for reinsurance

Provision for insurance confracts

Acting trading securities

Acting underwriting securities

Available-for-sale liabilities

Non-current liabilities due within one year

¢19)

10,000,000.00

125,445,097.27

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

1,303,027,143.28

1,380,405,751.60

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

(22)

40,000,000.00

Bonds payables

Including: preferred shares

perpetual bonds

Long-term account payable

Long-term payroll payable

23)

868,960.30

1,022,272.96

Estimated liabilities

24

70,085,152.06

81,785,696.76

Deferred income

Deferred income tax liabilities

(13)

4,219,022.55

5,680,754.62

Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

115,173,134.91

88,488,724.34

Total liabilities

1,418,200,278.19

1,468,894,475.94

Owner’s equity:

Share capital

(25}

929,017,761.00

929,017,761.00

Other equity instruments

Including: preferred shares

perpetual bonds




Liabilities and Owner's Equity

Note

Closing Balance

Opening Balance

\4
Capital reserve (26) 51,259,534.18 51,259,534.18
Less: treasury stock
Other comprehensive income 27 -3,518,732.50 -4,275.210.95
Special reserves (28) 13,921.38 13,921,38
Surplus statutory reserve (29) | 77,898,985.76 77,898,985.76
General risk provision
Undistributed profit (30) | -2,204,944.31 -44,394,785.25

Total owner’s equity attributable to the parent company

1,052,466,525.51

1,009,520,206.12

Non-controlling interest

62,093,853.16

68,962,660.14

Total owner’s equity

1,114,560,378.67

1,078,482,866.26

Total Habilities and owner’s equity

2,532,760,656.86

2,547,377,342.20

The attached notes constitute part of the financial statement.

Legal Representative: Accountant:

Accounting leader:




Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Balance Sheet of Parent Company
As of December 31, 2018
(All amounts are expressed in Chinese yuan (RMB) unless other specified.)

Assets

Note
X1V

Closing Balance

Opening Balance

Current assets:

Monetary funds

685,462.57

35,255,104.47

Financial assets measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the
current profit and loss

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable and account receivable

Prepayment

Other accounts receivable

)]

1,363,678,140.18

1,126,794,773.62

Inventories

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets due within one year

Other current assets

505,667.22

242,068.59

Total current assets

1,364,869,269.97

1,162,291,946.68

Non-current assets:

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investment

Long-term accounts receivable

Long-term equity investment

(2)

613,623,797.01

613,623,797.01

Investment property

44,186,978.73

Fixed assets

279,223.16

1,037,260.21

Construction in progress

Productive biological assets

Qil and gas assets

Intangible assets

291,117.82

288,750.00

Development expenditure

Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses

Deferred income tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

658,381,116.72

614,949,807.22

Total assets

2,023,250,386.69

1,777,241,753.90

Legal Representative:

Accountant:

The attached notes constitute part of the financial statement.

Accounting leader:




Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Balance Sheet of Parent Company (continued)
As of December 31, 2018
(All amounts are expressed in Chinese yuan (RMB) unless other specified.)

Liabilities and Owner’s Equity

Note

Closing Balance

Opening Balance

Current iiabilities:

Short-term borrowings

344,000,000.00

395,000,300.00

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognized in the
current profits and losses

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable and accounts payable

Advance received

Payroll payable 2,969,323.16 1,829,120.28
Tax payable 660,803.07 81,373.26
Other accounts payable 620,778,757.54 422,608,551.15

Available-for-sale liabilities

Non-current liabilities due within one year

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

968,408,883.77

819,519,044.72

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

Bonds payables

Including preferred shares

Perpetual bonds

Long-term account payable

Long-term payroll payable

Estimated liabilities

41,197,813.70

22,116,465.75

Deferred income

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

41,197,813.70

22,116,465.75

Total liabilities

1,009,606,697.47

841,635,51047

Owner’s equity:

Share capital

929,017,761.00

929,017,761.00

Other equity instruments

Including preferred shares

perpetual bonds

Capital reserve

155,822,801.02

155,822,801.02

Less treasury stock

Other comprehensive income

Special reserve

Surplus statutory reserve

65,431,085.56

65,431,085.56

Undistributed profit

-136,627,958.36

-214,665,404.15

Total owner’s equity

1,013,643,689.22

935,606,243.43

Total liabilities and owner’s equity

2,023,250,386.69

1,777,241,753.90

The attached notes constitute part of the financial statement.

Legal Representative: Accountant:

Accounting leader:




Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement
As of December 31, 2018
(All amounts are expressed in Chinese yuan (RMB) unless other specified.)

Item Note V This period Liast period
1. Total Revenue 496,460.231.64 769,082,244 .46
Including: Operating income 3D 496,460,231.64 769,082,244 46
Interest income
Earned insurance premium
Handling fee and commission income
I1. Total Operating Cost 478,774,322.42 1,236,481,768.51]
Including: Operating cost (3D 466,846,313.56 688,134,786.87
Interest expense
Handling fee and commission expenditures
Surrender value
Ney payments for insurance claims
Net provision for insurance contracts
Payment of dividend to policyholder
Reinsurance expense
Business tax and surcharges (32) 22,141,602 .55 36,468,099.68
Sales expense (33) 8,851,215.29 15,901,340.96
Management expense (34) 77,660,166.68 101,397,463.77
R&D expenses
Financial expense (35) 31,058,282.81] 89,781,555.31
Including: interest expenses 57,798,044.63 60,235,328.10
Interest income 532.628.33 4,882,870.43
Asset impairment (oss (36) -127,783,258.47 304,798,521.92
Plus: other income
Eil’\;estment income (indicate the loss with G7) ~641,729.10
Includmg: Investme:nt in joint-venture and -641,729.10
cooperative enterprises
Gains from changes in fair value (indicate
the loss with *-*)
f\’sset disposal income (indicate the loss with (8) 119,559.24 -3.023,856.62
Exchange earnings (indicate the loss with
fl}) Operating profit (indicate the loss with 17,163,739.36 470,423 380.67
Plus: non-operating income {39} 34,525,504.24 382,500.53
Less: non-operating expense (40) 23,253,184 .84 19,457,282.26
IV. Total profit (indicate total loss with *-") 28,436,058.76 -489,498,162.40
Less: Income tax expenses 4n -1,418,588.03 -14,082,127.66

V. Net profit (indicate total loss with *-*)

29,854,646.79

-475,416,034.74

1. By operation continuity

29,854,646.79

-475,416,034.74

(1) net profit of continued operation
{indicate total loss with ‘-”)

29,854,646.79

-475,416,034.74

(2) net profit of discontinued operation
(indicate total loss with ‘-’

2. By ownership

29,854,646.79

-475,416,034.74

(1) Net profit attributable 1o the owners of
parent company {indicate total loss with *-)

42.189,840.94

-449,133,780.73

(2) Minority shareholders’ profit (indicate

-12,335,194.15

-26,282,254.01




Item

Note V

This period

Last period

the net loss with *-7)

VL. Other after tax comprehensive income

3,222,865.62

-23,435,116.25

Other after tax comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of parent company

756,478.45

-18,005,520.74

1. Other comprehensive income that cannot
be subsequently re-classified as profit and
loss

(1). Re-measured changes in the net
Habilities or net assets in defined benefit
plan

(2). Attributable share in other
comprehensive income that cannot be
re-classified as profit and loss under the
equity method

2. Other comprehensive income that wiil be
subsequently re-classified as profit and loss

756,478.45

-18,005,520.74

{1). Attributable share in other
comprehensive income that will be
subsequently re-classified as profit and loss
under the equity method

{2) Profit and loss from fair value changes of
available-for-sale financial assets

-6,826,507.50

-6,944,821.62

(3). Profit and loss by re-classifying the
held-to-maturity investment as
available-for-sale financial assets

(4). Effective part of profit and loss from
cash flow hedging

(5). Difference from translation of foreign
currency financial statements

7,582,985.95

-11,060,699.12

(6). Miscellaneous

Other after tax comprehensive income
attributable to minority shareholders

2,466,387.17

-5,429,595.51

VII. Total comprehensive income

33,077,512.41

-498,851,150.99

Total comprehensive income attributable to
the owner of the parent company

42,946,319.39

-467,139,301.47

Total comprehensive income attributable to

the minority sharcholders -9,868,806.98 -31,711,849.52

VIII. Earnings per share:

(1) Basic earnings per share (yuan per share) 0.0454 -0.4835
q -

(2) Diluted earnings per share (yuan per 0.0454 -0.4835

share)

The attached notes constitute part of the financial statement.

Legal Representative:

Accountant;

Accounting leader:




Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Profit and Loss Statement of Parent Company
As of December 31, 2018
(All amounts are expressed in Chinese yuan (RMB) unless other specified.)

Item Note This Period Last Period
1. Operating revenues
Less: operating costs
Business tax and surcharges 146,119.15 16,765.45

Costs of sales

Management expense

23,522,913.12

25,468,822.66

R&D expense

I

Financial expense 26,622,136.63 80,117,414.14
Including: interest expense 53,026,067.16 52,482,867.21
Interest income 98.881.26 4,597,787.89
Asset impairment loss -147,623,717.83 197,511,488.68

Plus: Other income

Investment income (indicate the loss with *-’)

Including income from investment in joint-venture

and cooperative enterprises

Profit from changes in fair value (indicate the loss

with *-*)

Asset disposal income {indicate the loss with ‘-") -925.00 -64,933.94

| I1. Operating profit (indicate the loss with ‘-") 97,331,623.93 -303,179,424.87

Plus: Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expense

19,294,178.14

10,816,465.75

t!l]. Total profits (indicate the loss with *-")

78,037,445.79

-313,995,890.62

Less income tax expenses

I'V. Net profits(indicate the loss with *-°)

78,037,445.79

-313,995,890.62

(1) net profit of continued operation (indicate total
loss with ¢-”)

78,037,445.79

-313,995,890.62

(2) net profit of discontinued operation (indicate
total loss with ‘-")

V. Other comprehensive income after tax

1. Re-measured changes in the net liabilities or net
assets in defined benefit plan

(1) Re-measured changes in the net liabilities or net
assets in defined benefit plan

(2) Attributable share in other comprehensive
income that cannot be re-classified as profit and loss
of the investee under the equity method

2. Other comprehensive income that will be
subsequently re- classified as profit and loss

(1). Attributable share in other comprehensive
income that will be subsequently re- classified as
profit and loss under the equity method

(2). Profit and loss from fair value changes of
_ available-for-sale financial assets




Item

Note

This Period

Last Period

{3). Profit and loss by re-classifying the
held-to-maturity investment as available-for-sale
financial assets

(4). Effective part of profit and loss from cash flow
hedging

(5). Differences from translation of foreign currency
financial statements

(6). Miscellaneous

VI. Total comprehensive incomes

78,037,445.79

-313,995,890.62

VIIL. Eamnings per share:

1. basic carnings per share (yuan per share)

2, diluted earnings per share (yuan per share)

The attached notes constitute part of the financial statement.

Legal Representative: Accountant:

Accounting leader:




Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

As of December 31, 2018

(All amounts are expressed in Chinese yuan (RMB) unless other specified.)

Item

Note V

This period

Last period

1. Cash flow from operating
activities

Cash received from sale of goods
and services

449,670,083.32

533,224,419.58

Net increase in customer’s deposits
and deposits from other banks

Net increase in borrowing funds
from central bank

Net increase in borrowing funds
from other financial institutions

Cash from the premiums of original
insurance contract

Net cash from reinsurance business

Net Increase in insurance’s deposits
and investment funds

Net increase in financial assets
measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recorded in the current
profits and losses

Cash from interest payment,
handling change and commission

Net increase in borrowing funds

Net increase in buy-back funds

Tax refunds received

23,452,942.84

41,236,728.96

Other cash received related to
operating activities

(42)

131,869,213.15

41,875,177.11

Total cash inflow from operating
activities

604,992,239.31

616,336,325.65

Cash paid for purchase of goods and
services

129,608,414.97

220,566,493.74

Net increase in customer lending
and advance in cash

Net increase in deposits in central
bank and interbank deposits

Cash to pay insurance compensation
under the original insurance contract

Cash to pay the interest, handling
change and commission

Cash to pay policy dividend

Cash paid to/for staff members

121,984,837.70

159,722,082.68

Taxes paid

26,610,887.50

33,038,744.03

Cash paid related to other operating
activities

(42)

38.645,133.66

92,287,343.50




Item

Note V

This period

Last period

Total cash outflow from operating
activities

316,849,273 .83

505,614,663.95

Net cash flow from operating
activities

288,142,965.48

110,721,661.70

II. Cash flow from investing
activities

Cash received from payback of
investment

Cash received from investment
earnings

Net cash received from disposal of
fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

344,151.63

120,103.00

Net cash received from disposal of
subsidiaries and other business units

Other cash received related to
investment activities

(42)

90,000,000.00

85,000,000.00

Total cash inflow in investing
activities

90,344,151.63

85,120,103.00

Cash paid to purchase fixed assets
intangible assets or other long-term
assets

140,939,138.73

169,802,444.63

Cash paid for investment

Net increase in pledge loan

Net cash paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries and other business units

Other cash paid related to
investment activities

(42)

95,000,000.00

Total cash outflow in investment
activities

235,939,138.73

169,802,444.63

Net cash flow from investing
activities

-145,594,987.10

-84,682,341.63

III. Cash flow from financing
activities

Cash received from paid-in
investment

3,000,000.00

Including: Cash received from the
investment in subsidiaries by
minority shareholders

3,000,000.00

Cash received from loans

306,466,564.31

448,481,167.69

Cash received from bond issue

Other cash received related to
financing activities

(42)

18,522,301.37

538,125.00

Total cash inflow in financing
activities

327,988,865.68

449,019,292.69

Cash repayments of borrowings

427,500,839.46

350,364,705.20

Cash paid for distribution of
dividends and profits or payment of

38.581,602.85

32,690,516.06




Item Note V This period Last period
interests
Including dividends and profits paid
by the subsidiaries to minority
shareholders
Other cash paid related to financing @2) 28.500.000.00 80,000,000.00

activities

Total cash outflow in financing
activities

494,582,442.31

463,055,221.26

Net cash flow in financing
activities

-166,593,576.63

-14,035,928.57

IV. Effects of changes in exchange
rate on cash and cash equivalents

538,702.34

-319,293.89

V. Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

-23,506,895.91

11,684,097.61

Plus: opening balance of cash and
cash equivalents

64,659,655.22

52,975,557.61

V1. Closing balance of cash and
cash equivalents

41,152,759.31

64,659,655.22

The attached notes constitute part of the financial statement.

Legal Representative: Accountant:

Accounting leader:




Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Cash Flow Statement of Parent Company
As of December 31, 2018
(All amounts are expressed in Chinese yuan (RMB) unless other specified.)

Ttem Note This Period Last Period
1. Cash flow from operating activities
Cash received from sale of goods and services
Tax refunds received
Other cash received related to operating 252.391,926.25 4,559,429.36

activities

Total cash inflow from operating activities

252,391,926.25

4,559,429.36

Cash paid for purchase of goods and services

Cash paid to/for staff members 8,702,594.34 7,784,232.59
Taxes paid 28,139.90 564,450.79
Cash paid related to other operating activities 147,853,547.93 84,318.406.55
Total cash outflow from operating activities 156,584,282.17 92.667.089.93

Net cash flow from operating activities

95,807,644.08

-88,107,660.57

II. Cash flow from investing activities

Cash received from payback of investment

Cash received from investment earnings

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

. . 120,103.00
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries

and other business units

Otltleff f:ash received related to investment 90,000,000.00 £5.,000,000.00
activities

Total cash outflow in investment activities 90,600,000.00 £5,120,103.00
Cash paid to purchase fixed assets intangible 1.417,449.22 2,600.00
assets or other long-term assets

Cash paid for investment

Net cash from subsidiaries and other business

units

Other cash paid related to investment activities 95,000,000.00

Total cash outflow in investment activities 96,417,449,22 2,600.00
Net cash flow from investing activities -6,417,449.22 85,117,503.00
II1. Cash flow from financing activities

Cash received from paid-in investment

Cash received from loans 250,000,000.00 395,000,000.00
Cash received from bond issue

Otl?e'r f:ash received related to financing 18,522,301.37 538.125.00
activities

Total cash inflow in financing activities 268,522,301.37 395,538,125.00
Cash repayments of borrowings 301,000,000.00 300,000,000.00

Cash paid for distribution of dividends and
profits or payment of interests

31,694,013.13

25,703,343.84

Other cash paid related to financing activities

28,500,000.00

80,000,000.00

Total cash outflow in financing activities

361,194,013.13

405,703,343.84




Item

Note

This Period

Last Period

Net cash flow' in financing activities

-92,671,711.76

-10,165,218.84

IV. Effects of changes in exchange rate on
cash and cash equivalents

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

-3,281,516.90

-13,155,376.41

Plus opening balance of cash and cash
equivalents

3.966,979.47

17,122,355.88

VL. Closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents

685,462.57

3,966,979.47

The attached notes constitute part of the financial statement.

Legal Representative: Accountant:

Accounting leader:




L[uyo (y

(s1aplouareys
10) 519UM() 31 01 PAINQUISIP 1jo1 (¢

2AI983I

ysur [eruad 2yl Jo uoneudoiddy (7

5919521 snjdims jo uoneudoddy ([

UOUNYLUSIP 1JOLJ ¢

eI

Aynba g r2um() 2yp se
passi] usw {ed paseq-oreys Jo wmewy (¢

SIUWITLISUT SAISUY2IEUID

1310 JO s19pjoy Ay Aq parsaam [ende)) (7

— . SI3PIOLIIBYS
00 000 000°€ 00 000°000°C £q parsaalr SaIRYS UOWLWOY) (]
oo [T $13UM0
00 000000°¢ 00 000 000t Aq panquuuos [enden syl ur saueyn) g
Ik TIS'LL0ee 86 908°898°6- ¥6 0¥8°6BI° T SF 8LP 9L swoan atsusyarduod [ejo] |
e . . . =, Yilm 2582133p 2y s1ed1pur) potixd
1 TIS'LLOOE 36 908°898°9- P6'0PE 681 TF St BLY 9SL JISLRG W) PALINOI e Ut SoTuE) ]
97 998°78%°8L0°T |FI 099°296'89 ST S8L PG b 9L SBG'868°LL |8E1Z6'E]  [S601T'SLT Y 81 FES'65TIS 00 19L°L10°6T6 Teak Ju21ind Jo 23uefeq Suado (1
B0
jonuoy
LDUWIUIOD IIPUN UDHERIGIOD SSaUISTHY
pouad snotaald U SI0L3 FO U0yIZL0T)
sarorjod Fununosoe w2 safueyd snjg
9T 998°TRY'BLOTL [FL Q99TI6'8Y  |ST SBLVGE Y 9L SB6'B68°LL (B 1T6ET (SO OITSLT Y 81 pEC'65T'1S 00 19L'£10°626 Tea{1se] Jo soueieq Fwisap) |
EL LAY n038 spuog saleqg
by P— yoid o1s1A0a g SIAIISNY EINEI sapusgaadmory | Kinseann dadesas (PO fenading | porsajeig) ende sseyg
pIINQLISIpU() | YSTY |RI2WIN snjdang edg ' rende)
$,23uMQ) [B)0L, | Sugenued-toy 4300 8] sppswnnsum L)mba Qo LB

Kuedwod yuazed 213 o) iqeInquine Aynba s, 10ungp

POLIA] 1UBTIND

(‘poymdads Jay)o ssopun (FIARY) uens asaury) ul passatdxa aie sjunowe |1y)

8107 ‘1€ 13quada( jo sy

Aymby s pumQ u1 saduey) Jo yuawd)vlg pajepijosuoc)
01 BL0d.10)) JUINNSIAU] $IVIN0SIY unijuoyyz




112pe2] SUNUNOXOY

‘JUBIUNODOY

:aAnBlUasaIday eda]

"JUSWANE)S [rIdUBUY AU Jo Med Imsuod SI0U paydelE A

L9 BLECASHITT (9T £48°€60°T9 1€ b6 0T 9L S86'868°LL (8T 1T6'C1 [0S ZELBIS E- 81 PECBETIS 00 19£°L10°626 2olUE[Rq BUISO[) Al
SNOJUB[[IISIN 9
powad uaLms ur pasiin {7
pouad Juazing Ul IMBIPYIM S3AI$2Y (|
SAAIAS3L [BLAdG ¢
SNOBUE| 3081 (5
ue(d 11Jouaq paulap 3 jo saZueya worp
piesie] paLLed sdunues pouelsy (4
WDLDP B 12A0D 0) 2412591 sn[dIng {¢
[evden
3IRYS 0] Aakasal sndins Jo Lajsuel] (7
[eudes
ales 03 21521 Teden Jo Jajsuel] (]
Aunba s 13m0 3Y) UM 1JSURL] ¢
WodNY yoo0rs spuog saleng
Lyunby FESTEIT ] Jord oAt sorasy ansaey aaisudgaadwory | Lanseaa)y aadasar IO renpdiag [ pasagpsg | rende) asegs
PANQLUSIPUNY | HSIY erduan)y snjding Bsdg 1ende)
$,33UM0 (8101 | Smposuos-noy BRHO S5 sjmawnasm L3mba Y0 wayy

Auedwmod yusied 2qy 03 ajqenqumye Aunba 5 Jaumg

po12J 30310




12100 (1

(s1aproya1eys
20) SI9WM0 A1 01 PAINQIISIP 11J0] (¢

QAIIE1

Fsu Tesouad ay o uoneudoxddy (7

saasasar sndms jo vonenrdesddy(|

uoUNQISIP 1goId ¢

BPyo (v

Amba s 13uM0) 240 SB pAS]
Juauried paseq-a1eys Jo junowy (¢

SIUSLNIISUT 2AISUMYRIAW0D 15130

Jo s12pjoy 2y Aq paisaAw [ende)y {7

Slapjoyaleys

Aq PalsaAur $3IBYS UOWLION) ([

SIaUMD
£q painguuea rendes 2y3 w safueyny 7

66 0S1°158'86v~  |TS 6b8°14°1E- €L 082 ECT 6 ¥L0TS'S00'81- swoaur aatsusyaxdwiod jeoy, |
. (-, [IIM 3582103 A3 3te0iput} poriad
66 0SE°CEB'86F (TS LLETILTE |EL°0BL'EE1 6ot 002291~ [¥L 0ZS'SO0'81- JUSLIND U1 PILINDUI JUNOWE Ut safuwy?) |[]
STLITOEELLEL |99 LE0'SLO001  |Bb S66'8EL FOF 9L $86'868°LL [8E €65°SI  [6L 60€70ELEI 81 $EC65TIS 00 [9L°L10°676 T83A JuaLnd §0 ddueleq Suwado [
Y
JOLU0d
UOWwuIod Japun ucneuiquo wmvﬁnwﬂm
pouad snoiaazd ur 510119 JO UOI3AII00)
samed Sununoade i sa8ueRYa SN
STLITYEE'LLS T (99 LE0°SL00T 3b C66°8EL POV 9L $86'868°LL |8E £€65°ST  [6L 60COCLET 81 FEC'6STIS 00 [9£°L10'6Z6 Ie2A 3571 JO 22uEjRq JWiS0]) |
smosn| HI0)8 spuog Rleyg
Lpoabey I Teitey ed norolg ALY Santasay IALSHIAIA0G ) Arisesey Y IR0 [enyadidd | pALIFELg | [epde) soeqg
i panqusipuy) | ys1y |edauan) snidang BIdg ! R 1ende) 7 _
s Jaum() [Bi0], | Sunenuca-noy 1BPO By | sjuamnasm Amby 290 Wy

Auedmied yuaaed ay3 03 3jgEIngrae Apnba s1aumg

POl )sH]

(‘paydads Jopo ssajun (JIAR) uen4 asauiy) ul passatdxa ale s)unowe [[v)

8107 “I€ 12qUIdA( JO SV

(penunjuo)) Apnbg s.soum w saBury) Jo Juswagel§ pAyEPIOSUO))
uonesodao)) JuaW)SIAU $IIN0SIY UNIGUOYZ



:Jopea] Sununosdy

JUBIUNOIDY

:aaneasarday (eda

‘JUSWIAIRYS [RIDUBLLY 2} Jo Led 3Jn)1ISUOD SIJ0U PAYdER Y]

92 998°78F'8L0°1

¥1.099°796'89

ST SRLbeE b

9L $86'868°LL

8¢ [T6°E1

S6 01T°SLTY

81 ¥E5°6ST TS

00 194°L10°626

sourieq SWSO[D) Al

AP0 9

000027

00 8Z¢

00 ZL9°1

pouad uarmd ur pasinn (z

poLad JUALMI UT UMBIPYILA 5241953 (|

00 00Z°Z-

00 8¢5~

00 7L9°1-

$3A19531 [RI12adg ¢

1Bo (¢

uepd 11J2uag pRULRp 21 JO S2EUeyD w0y
PIRALIOJ PILLIED SSUTLIED PAWMERY (4

1121J2p 21 13A0D 0} saalasal snjding (¢

(endes
areys 01 saa1asa4 snjdms jo 1agsueIl (7

reudes

areys 01 san1asal {endes jo 13jsuery (|

Amba 5 1300 2 UM J2JSUeI]

Aynby
§,49uM() [EIOL

JE-¥E I
Jumjonmor-noy

ead
PAHRGLISTPU )

UOISIAGLY
STy |ELOUIT)

saAlasay
snpding

$aAISY
1eadg

awmeduf
aasuanaadme)y
B0

Ha0)s
AAnsE)
18527

ALISAY
fende)

LYo

spuog
[emadiag

SAIBS

LIREIETH ¢

sjuawnaysu Lnby 1agig

[ende)) aaeys

Ausdwod juaied ag) 0y pqeingrane Annba s Janmg

Po1a3J 158

wa)g




2Ieys 0] SaAJasal snjcins Jo Jagsuel] {7

[endes

SUBYS O} 52A1951 [earden Jo Iafsuel] (|

Annba S 15UMO 91 UM IAJSUBL] 4

1890 (€

{sI1aproyaleys
10) SI3UMO 21 0 pANQINSTP 11J01d (7

saazasal snpcns jo wenedosddy (1

uouNQLYSIP YOI §

250 (¢

A1mba s 1auMQ oY
sk pasI] wow ied paseq-aIeys JO JUROWY (C

SAUMIISUT 2arsuataidwoes

13y10 Jo s1aploy ay) Aq pagsaaul [epdes) (7

SIOP|OYAIRYS AQ PAISIALL SHIBYS UOWIWO)) (|

SIUMo

Aq pamqruued renides a1 wr safueyy ¢

6L SPYLED'SL 6L §PE'LEOBL 2wodur sasusyadwos oy |
L o (=, M 25B2I03P A1 23ea1pM) poliad

6L SYPLEO'SL 6L SHF LEOSL
JUALMD U1 PAUNSUL JUnowre ur safuey ]
£ £PT7909°556 SLPOP'S99FIT- | 95 S8O'IEH'SY 70 108°TT8$51 00 19L°LTO'6L6 Je3A ann Jo sueeq Juwsdgy [
SNOAUR[[2ISIY
potiad snoiadid Ul 10113 J0 UORIILIO
satoijod Bununoode ut sasueyd sn|g
£F £¥T'909°5E6 ST ¥OP'S99°vIT- | 95 S80°1EH'SD 20 108'7Z8'sST 00 19£°L10'6T6 rea{y5e] JO 20URIRG BUISO)) |

Jwoduf HI038 Spuog] SaIRYS
Annb =
s ..o“_.'_.»a n_aﬁo 2::.”““ " M“ﬂ“m nﬂ_.wwwam aarsuayaaduro) Lmswan) e.”.._”_mwz 20 renzadiag panayaId [epdey aaByg
¢ O [0L pRRqIspLN S Rals REL Ty 58] 1eRds0 spramnIysuy Anba g0 un
poLIag J1UaLIN))

8107 ‘1€ 12quIada(] JO SV

Auedwo)) yusae jo Ayinbg s, 10um() u1 sadury) jo Juaumde)g

:O_u.ﬂh@a—ho.\rv JUDUI)SIAU] SIDIN0SIY ==hm=0~—N

(*paymads Jayjo ssajun (GARY) UenA asaury) ur passatdxa ade sjunowre [[v)




:Japes] Sununosay JUBIUNODDY :aanejuasarday e8]

“JuUaW2Ye)s [eIdURUL} 2 JO Med S1N31SU0S S3J0U pPaydENE JY ],

TT 689°EPYCLO’]

9€ 86°279°9¢1-

9¢ $80°1EF'69

20 108278561 00 [9L°LI0'6T6 _ 2oue[eq SUTSO[D) Al

RO 9

pouzad yuaaInz ur pastjun) (7

vQCOQ JUSHND U1 UMEBIPYILM SIATISIY ([

saalasal erads ¢

2o (€

ueyd 11j2U3q PAUNSP 241 JO S3FLRYD

WO1j pIesmIo] PaLLes sBurLes pauey (b

UIYAP AP 19400 07 Saatasar snjding (¢

endes

fopaby

S JAUMQ) [B)O],

Wesg
PAINQLOSTPUn)

SIANISTY
snjdang

3woduy EEH
aarsuagardmo) Aanseaay
REL 1T 55

spuog sareyg
reniadiag palajalg
sjuamnaysm Apnba a0

TNV
rersadg

VRIS
1ende)

RO Iende) aseyg

way

peiaag waaan)y




SNO3UR|1AISYA] (€

{s13p|oyareys

10} SISO Y] 0) PAINQIISIP 301 (7

saa13521 snjdms jo ueneudoiddy (|

UONNQUASIp 1ol ¢

0w aarsuapIdwos ey, |

250 (v

Aunba s Jaumo 3y se

past) usused paseq-aaeys Jo Junowy (¢

SRS u>_m=v£o.__uEOu

19120 JO S1opley a1 Aq pajsaau peyder) (7

SI9pIOyaIeys

Aq pa1saAuT sa1uys Howwasy (|

slaumo

79 068°666°C1Er 79 068°66'€1E-

Aq painquyuod jendes sy) ur saguey)) 7
79°068°C66°CLE 79 068°C66°C €~ awoau aasusyarduos (mo] |
SO ¥EL'T09'6¢T1 L 98F'GEL 66 95 S80'TEHSH 70 108°728°¢51 00 192°L10°626 Jeak Jazma jo sauefeq Sumadgy [

SNORUE][IISTAL
pouad snotaald Ul SIOLS JO UDNIBLIO)
sarfod Sununoase ur safueys snig
SOPEIT096FTT | LY 9BPOLE6H 95 S8O°LEFSY 70 108°Z8°661 00 19£°210°6Z6 1831 15¥] JO 20UB|Rq SUISO|) |
anroauj o018 spuog SAIEYS
s b”_;_a: EME E:.“.H..HM . _.H:no.”z B.HHWM 2AISURYR.Kd o) £1nseal) u_”“un_muuz 2o renjadsag parizjaa g 1ende)) aasgs wo
¢ 01510k painqrasipu( 1¢1ns 1eRads FETHTS) 1§59] 1604ED sjuamnasut Annba aygio 31
poLag )se]

("payads oo ssajun (GEATY) ueni asaury)) ur passardxa aue syunowe [[y)
8107 ‘L€ 19quada( Jo sy
(penunuo)y) Aueduwo)) juased jo ANnby s JoumQ ul sasuey)) jo jusw)e}g

uonel0di0)) JUIWISIAUY SIXIN0SIY unifuoyy




:Iopea] Sununoooy

JJUBIUNOJDY

:aaneIuasaIday (eSa]

"JUSWERIElS TerouRUl 2 JO Med aIn)IIsuod s)ou paydene dy |,

£F £57'909°556 STHOP'S9S'PIT- | 95 $80'1€F'59 70 108°728°s81 00 19£°210°6Z6 ssuefeq WSOl Al

SNOAUE[[AISTIA] 9

pouad Jusuns ur pasinn (7

potrad WALMD U UMBIPUIIM 5941353 ([

saA13s21 (e130dS ¢

0 (s

ueyd 135u3q pauljep 1 Jo sadueys

WO pIeaml0y PaTLEd sTUIIes pautelsy (y

1N3113P Y] 13400 0) Saa1821 sdmg (¢

endes

21BYS 01 $2412531 sndans Jo 13psuelf {g

rendes

aIRYS 0) SaALasal [eudes Jo sajsuel) (|

ANnba s 13Um0 AU UMW 1JSUEL]
QWO 2038 Spuo sale

s ..w..».”.”ﬂ«e.ﬁ ﬁoﬁ_._wn_“._”““vzb n...u-”_.”._o._n”w m”M_..u“Momm u>_n=u:E.._-EaU Ev_..m_“ub ““.MMM LY _n_.wun.”m _...u._..&_“mm ende) a1eyg woiy

¢ T ' PELIT)] Hyty ' sjuamna)sm Aynba tayip

poLIa 15




Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements
Year 2018

(All amounts expressed in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Fast Facts about the Company
Company Overview

Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation (ZRC or the Company
hereinafter) was formerly known as Shandong Zhongrun Investment Holding
Group Co. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Zhongrun Holding), Zhongrun
Holding was formerly known as Shandong Huibang Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as Huibang Real Estate), Huibang Real Estate was
formerly known as Sichuan Dongtai Industry (Holding) Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
deterred to as Douglas Holding), and Dongtai Holding was formerly known as
Sichuan Emei Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Emei Group).
According to the Approval on Application for Establishing Sichuan Emeishan
Sait Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (CJ) (1998) Enterprisec No. 396) issued by the
former Sichuan Provincial Planning and Economic Committee and the Reply
on the Establishment of Sichuan Emeishan Salt Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. ((88)
QJZ No. 38) issued by the former Ministry of Light Industry, Sichuan
Emeishan Salt Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. was jointly founded by the former
Sichuan Wutonggqiao Salt Factory, an enterprise owned by the whole people,
China Huaging Industrial Company, China Light Industry Material Supply and
Marketing Corporation, China National Salt Industry Corporation and Sichuan
Salt Industry Co., Ltd. On May i1, 1988, Sichuan Emeishan Salt Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd. was given the Business License for Enterprise Legal Person,
with the license registration number of 91370000206951100B. On March 12,
1993, Sichuan Emeishan Salt Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. was listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange as an enterprise specializing in mineral resources
and real estate according to the Reply on the Public Listing Application of
Sichuan Emeishan Salt Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (ZJFZ [1993] No. 11)
issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission.

As of Dec. 31, 2018, the up-to-date registration data is as follows: the total
number of shares is 929,017,761, the registered capital is 929,017,761 Chinese
yuan, the registered address is Building 17, Zhongrun Century Plaza,
No.13777 lJingshi Road, Jinan City, Shandong Province, China, and the
business scope covers real estate and exploration of mineral resources.

As of Dec. 31, 2018, the controlling shareholder of the Company was Ningbo
Ransheng Shengyuan Investment Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (RanSheng Shengyuan hereinafter) and Mr. Guo Changwei was



II.

III.

the actual controller of the Company. These financial statements were
approved by all directors (Board of Directors) of the Company on April 25,
2019.

Scope of Consolidated Financial Statements

As of Dec. 31, 2018, the following subsidiaries are included in the scope of
consolidated financial statements:

_Shandong Qiansheng Trading Co., Ltd.

) ~ Subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements .
Zibo Real Estate Co. Ltd. of Shandong Zhongrun Group (Zibo Real Estate hereinafter)
Zhongrun Mining Development Co., Ltd.

Shengyuan Jiye Investment Management (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd.
Zhongrun International Mining Co., Ltd.

_Inner Mongolia Huiyin Mining Co., Ltd.

Chifeng Runyin Mineral Exploration Co., Ltd.
Sichnan Pingwu Zhongjin Mining Co., Ltd.

Tibet Zhongjin Mining Co., Ltd. )

Vatukoula Gold Mines PLC (VGM PLC hereinafter)
Vatukoula Gold Mines Limited (VGML hereinafter)

For the scope of consolidated financial statements for the current period and its
changes, please refer to "VI1. Change in Consolidation Scope" and "VII. Equity
in Other Entities" in these notes.

Basis for preparing the financial statements
Going-concern basis

On a going-concern basis and according to actual transactions or matters, the
financial statements of ZRC are prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standards for business Enterprises — Basic Standards, specific accounting
standards and subsequent Application Guide to Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, Interpretations of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and other related accounting regulations (hereinafter referred to as
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises collectively) promulgated by
the ministry of Finance, the stipulations on information disclosure under No./5
of Compilation Rules on Information Disclosure by the Companies Offering
Securities to the Public — General Provisions on Financial Reports
promulgated by CSRC, and the important accounting policies and accounting
estimates set forth below.

Going-concern ability
ZRC is unaffected by any factor that may make a significant impact upon its
going-concern ability during the current accounting period.

Major Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates Followed by ZRC



Compliance with the statement of accounting standards for business
enterprises

The financial statements prepared by the Company meet the requirements of
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and truly and completely
reflect the Company's financial status, operating results and cash flow and
other relevant information.

Accounting period

The accounting year of ZRC is from 1% January to 315 December.
Operating cycle

The Company uses 12 months as an operating cycle.

Base currency for bookkeeping

ZRC and its domestic subsidiaries use Chinese yuan (RMB) as accounting
currency.

Overseas subsidiaries of ZRC determine their accounting currency at their
discretion according to local economic environments, and the accounting
currency shall be converted into yuan (RMB) when they prepare financial
statements.

These financial statements are prepared in Chinese yuan (RMB).

Accounting methods for business combination under common control and
that not under common control

Business combination under common control: Assets and liabilities acquired
by the Company in a business combination are measured according to the
book value of assets and liabilities (including the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the merged entity by the ultimate controller) of the merged
entity on the merger date in the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate controller. The difference between the book value of net assets
acquired in the merger and the book value of the consideration paid for the
merger (or the total par value of the shares issued) is adjusted to the capital
reserve; if the capital reserve is insufficient to offset, adjust the retained
earnings.

Business combination not under common control; The assets paid and the
liabilities incurred or assumed by the Company as a consideration for the
merger on the acquisition date are measured at fair value, and the difference
between the fair value and book value is charged inte the profit or loss for the
current period. The difference between the purchase price and the fair value of
the identifiable net assets of the acquiree obtained by the Company on the
acquisition date is recognized as goodwill; if the merger cost is less than the



fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree acquired in the merger,
the difference is charged into the profit or loss for the current period after
review.

Intermediary costs such as expenses on audit, legal services, assessment and

consulting, and other related direct expenses incurred for the purpose of
business combination are charged to profit or loss for the current period when
incurred. The transaction costs of equity securities issued for the purpose of
business combination are offset by interest.

Ways to prepare consolidated financial statements

(1).

).

Principle for determining the consolidation scope

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statement is
determined on a controlling basis. All subsidiaries (including the
divisible part of the investee controlled by ZRC) are included in the
consolidation scope.

Consolidation procedures

The Company prepares consolidated statements based on other relevant
information based on the financial statements of itself and its subsidiaries.
The Company prepares consolidated financial statements, treats the

entire enterprise group as an accounting entity, and reflects the overall
financial status, operating results, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with unified accounting policies as well as the determination,
measurement, and presentation requirements of relevant corporate
accounting standards.

The accounting policies and accounting periods adopted by all
subsidiaries included in the consolidation scope of the consolidated
financial statements are consistent with those of ZRC. If the accounting
policies and the accounting periods adopted by the subsidiaries are
inconsistent with ZRC, necessary adjustments are made in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements according to the
accounting policies and accounting periods adopted by ZRC. For
subsidiaries acquired from business combination not under common
control, their financial statements are adjusted based on the fair value of
identifiable net assets on acquisition date. For subsidiaries acquired from
business combination under common control, their financial statements
are adjusted based on the book value of its assets and liabilities
(including the goodwill arising from acquisition of the subsidiary by the
ultimate controller) in the financial statements of the ultimate centroller.

The owner's equity, net profit or loss for the current period and current
comprehensive income attributable to the minority shareholders of the



subsidiary are separately presented under the owners' equity item in the
consolidated balance sheet and the net profit item and total
comprehensive income item in the consolidated income statement. [f the
current loss shared by a minority shareholder of the subsidiary exceeds
the minority shareholder's share in the owner's equity of the subsidiary at
the beginning of the period, the balance arising therefrom is offset by the
minority shareholders' equity.

1). Addition of subsidiaries or businesses

If subsidiary or business is added by business combination under
common control during the current accounting period, the opening
amounts in consolidated balance sheet are adjusted. The income,
expenses and profits of the added subsidiary or business from the
beginning of to the end of the accounting period in which the merge
occurs are included in the consolidated income statements. The cash
flow of the added subsidiary or business from the beginning of to the end
of the accounting period in which the merge occurs is included in the
consolidated cash flow statement. Meanwhile, the related items in the
comparative statement are adjusted. it is deemed that the reporting entity
after the combination has being existing since the time when the ultimate
controller began to control.

If it is possible to control the investee under common control due to
additional investment and other reasons, it is deemed that adjustments
have been made to the parties participating in the merger based on the
current state since the ultimate controller began controlling the merged
entities. The equity held prior to acquisition of control over the merged
entity, changes in profit and loss, other comprehensive income and other
net assets recognized in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the period from the date of the acquisition of the original equity
or the date when the merger and the merged entity are under common
control, whichever is later, to the date of merger are offset by the opening
retained earnings and the profit or loss for the current period during the
statements comparison period.

During the accounting period, if subsidiary or business is added due to
business combination not under common control, the opening amounts in
the consolidated balance sheet are not adjusted. The income, expenses
and profits of the subsidiary or business from the date of acquisition to
the end of the accounting period are included in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss. The cash flow of the subsidiary or business
from the date of acquisition to the end of the accounting period is
included in the consolidated cash flow statement.

If it is possible to control the investee under common control due to



additional investment and other reasons, the equity of the acquired entity
held by the Company before the acquisition date is re-measured
according to the fair value of the equity on the acquisition date, and the
difference between fair value and book value is charged into the
investment income for the current period. If the equity of the acquired
entity held by the Company before the acquisition date involves changes
in other comprehensive income under equity method and owner's equity
other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution, such changes are transferred to the investment income for
the current period on the acquisition date, except for other
comprehensive income arising from re-measurement of the changes in
net liabilities or net assets in defined benefit plan by investee.

2). Disposal of subsidiaries or businesses
(© General disposal method

In the current period, when the Company disposes of a subsidiary, the
income, expenses, and profits of the subsidiary from the beginning of the
period to the disposal date are included in the consolidated income
statement; the cash flow of the subsidiary or business from the beginning
of the period to the disposal date is included in the consolidated cash
flow statement.

When the control over the original subsidiary is lost due to the disposal
of part of the equity investment or other reasons, the remaining equity
investment after disposal will be re-measured by the Company based on
its fair value on the date of loss of control. The sum of the consideration
received by disposing of the equity and the fair value of the remaining
equity, minus the sum of the share of the net assets and the goodwill that
were calculated on the basis of the original shareholding ratio in the
original subsidiary since the data of acquisition or date of merger, the
difference formed is included in the investment income of the current
control loss period. Other comprehensive income related to the equity
investment of the original subsidiary or other owner's equity changes
other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution is transferred to the current investment income on the date of
control loss, except for other comprehensive income arising from the
investee's re-measurement of the changes in net liabilitics or net assets in
the defined benefit plan.

If the Company's shareholding ratio declines and loses control over a
subsidiary because other investors increase their shareholding ratio, the
above accounting principles apply.

@ Step-by-step disposal of subsidiary



If the Company disposes of equity investment in a subsidiary through
multiple transactions until it loses control, these transactions should be
treated as a package transaction in any of the following cases.

i.  These transactions are made at the same time or made after
consideration of mutual influence.

ii. These transactions as a whole achieve a complete business result.

iii. The occurrence of a transaction depends on the occurrence of at least
one other transaction.

iv. A transaction alone is not economical, but it is economical when
considered together with other transactions.

If the disposals of equity investment in a subsidiary until the loss of
control are deemed a package transaction, the transactions will be treated
as a single transaction to dispose of the subsidiary and lose control.
However, the difference between every disposal price and the share of
net assets in the subsidiary corresponding to such disposal before loss of
control is recognized in the consclidated financial statements as other
comprehensive income and is collectively transferred to the profit or loss
for the period when control is lost.

If the disposals of equity investment in a subsidiary untit the loss of
control cannot be deemed a package transaction, before the loss of
control, the relevant policies for partial disposal of equity investment in
the subsidiary before loss of control are followed in accounting. When
the control is lost, general accounting policies for disposal of subsidiary
are followed.

@ Purchase of minority shares of subsidiary

In case of difference between the long-term equity investment newly
acquired by purchase of minority shares in a subsidiary and the share of
net assets in the subsidiary that should be continuously calculated from
the acquisition date (or date of merger) in accordance with the new
sharcholding ratio, the share premium in the consolidated balance sheet
is adjusted accordingly. If the share premium in capital reserve is
insufficient to offset, adjust the retained earnings.

@ Partial disposal of equity investment in subsidiary without loss of
control

In case of difference between the disposal price obtained by partial
disposal of long-term equity investment in subsidiary without loss of
control and the share of the net assets of the subsidiary continuously
calculated from the acquisition date or the date of merger corresponding



%

to the disposal of the long-term equity investment, the share premium in
capital reserve in consolidated balance sheet is adjusted accordingly. If
the share premium in capital reserve is insufficient to offset, adjust the
retained earnings.

Classification of joint arrangement and the accounting methods
Joint arrangement is divided into joint operation and joint venture.

If the Company is a party to a joint arrangement and has rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement, the joint
arrangement is joint operation.

The Company recognizes the following items related to the share of interest in
joint operations and performs accounting treatment in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises:

(D Recognize the assets held by the Company individually, and recognize
jointly held assets according to the shares of the Company;

@ Recognize the liabilities assumed by the Company alone, and recognize
the jointly assumed liabilities according to the shares of the Company;

@ Recognize the revenue generated from the sale of the share of joint
operating output that the Company enjoys;

@ Recognize the income generated from the sales of joint operations
according to the Company's share;

&  Recognize the costs incurred individually and recognize the expenses
incurred in the joint operation according to the Company's share.

Determination of cash and cash equivalents

When preparing the cash flow statement, the Company's cash in hand and
deposits that can be used for payment at any time are recognized as cash.
Short-term investments held by companies (usually those that are due within 3
months from the acquisition date), strong liquidity, easy to convert into known
amounts of cash, and investments with a small risk of changes in value are
recognized as cash equivalent.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of foreign currency

statements

(1). Foreign currency transactions

For foreign currency transactions that occurred, the spot exchange rate
(usually the middle price of the exchange rate quoted by the People's
Bank of China on the same day, the same below) is used to convert
foreign currency into RMB.
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).

The balances of foreign currency monetary items on balance sheet date
are translated at the spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are charged into profit or loss for the
current period, except that exchange differences arising from foreign
currency specific borrowings relating to the acquisition or construction
of assets eligible for capitalization are treated in accordance with the
principle of capitalization of borrowing costs.

Translation of foreign currency statements

Assets and liabilities items in the balance sheet are translated at the spot
exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Owner's equity items, except
"undistributed profit" item, are translated at the spot exchange rate at the
time of occurrence. Incomes and expenses in profit statement are
translated at the approximate exchange rate (current average exchange
rate) on the date of the transaction.

When disposing of overseas operations, the translation difference in the
foreign currency statements related to the overseas operations is
transferred from owner's equity to the profit or loss for the current
period.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include financial assets, financial liabilities and equity
instruments.

M.

).

Classification of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as follows at the time of
initial recognition: Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, including transactional financial assets or financial
liabilities and financial assets or financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss; held-to-maturity investment; receivables;
available-for-sale financial assets.

Recognition and measurement of financial instruments

1). Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

At the time of acquisition, financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value (net of
cash dividends declared but not yet paid or bond interest earned but not
yet paid), and the relevant transaction costs are charged into the profit or
loss for the current period.

During holding period, interests or cash dividends obtained are
recognized as investment income. At the end of the current period,



changes in fair value will be charged into profit or loss for the current
period.

At the time of disposal, the difference between the fair value and the
initial recorded amount is recognized as investment income, and the
gains or losses from change in fair value are adjusted.

2). Held-to-maturity investment

At the time of acquisition, the sum of the fair value {net of bond interest
that has earned but has not yet been paid) and the related transaction
expenses are taken as the initially recognized amount.

During holding period, interest income is recognized according to
amortized cost and actual interest rate and is charged into investment
income. The actual interest rate is determined at the time of acquisition
and remains unchanged during its expected period of existence or other
applicable shorter period.

At the time disposal, the difference between the acquisition price and the
book value of the investment is charged into investment income.

3). Receivables

The receivables incurred by sales of goods or provision of labor services
and the debts owed by other companies to the Company other than debt
instruments that have no quoted prices in an active market, including
accounts receivable, other receivables, etc., are initially recognized
according to their contract or agreement prices receivable from
purchasers. If it is of financing nature, initial recognition shall be based
on its present value.

At the time of receipt or disposal, the difference between the actual
transaction price and the book value of the receivable is charged into the
profit or loss for the current period.

4). Available-for-sale financial asscts

At the time of acquisition, the sum of the fair value (net of cash
dividends declared but not yet paid or bond interest earned but not yet
paid) and the related transaction expenses are taken as the initially
recognized amount.

The interest or cash dividends obtained during the holding period are
recognized as investment income. At the end of current period,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value and the fair
value change is charged into other comprehensive income. However,
equity instrument investments that have no quoted prices in active
markets and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivative
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financial assets that are linked to the equity instruments and must be
settled through delivery of the equity instruments are measured at cost.

At the time of disposal, the difference between the obtained price and the
book value of the financial asset is charged into gain or loss on
investment; at the same time, the amount of the corresponding part of the
cumulative change in the fair value that has been directly charged into
other comprehensive income is transferred out and charged into the
profit or loss for the current period.

5). Other financial liabilities

The sum of the fair value and the related transaction expenses are taken
as the initially recognized amount. Subsequent measurement is based on
amortized cost.

Recognition and measurement of financial assets transfer

If financial asset has been transferred and almost all the risks and
rewards on the ownership of the financial asset have been transferred to
transferee, such financial asset will be derecognized. If the Company
maintains almost all the risks and rewards on the ownership of the
financial asset, such financial asset will be still recognized.

When judging whether the transfer of financial assets satisfies the above
derecognizing condition, the principle of substance over form is adopted.
The Company divides financial asset transfers into overall transfer and
partial transfer. If the overall transfer of financial asset satisfies the
derecognizing condition, the difference between the following two
amounts is charged into the profit or loss for the current period:

(@ Book value of the transferred financial asset;

@ The sum of the consideration paid upon transfer and the cumulative
change in the fair value that has been directly charged into owner's
equity (in the case that the financial asset involved is available-for-sale
financial asset).

If partial transfer of financial asset satisfies the derecognizing condition,
the book value of the financial asset as a whole is apportioned between
the derecognized part and the recognized part in accordance with their
respective relative fair value, and the difference between the following
two

amounts is charged into the profit or loss for the current period:

(D The book value of the derecognized part;

@ The sum of the consideration received for the derecognized part and
the derecognized part of the cumulative change in fair value that has
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charged directly into the ownet's equity.

If the transfer of financial asset does not meet the derecognizing
condition, the financial asset will continue to be recognized and the
consideration received will be recognized as a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

If the current obligation of a financial liability is discharged in whole¢ or
in part, the financial liability or part thereof may be derecognized. When
the Company (debtor) signs an agreement with the creditor to replace the
existing financial [iabilities with new financial liabilities and the terms of
the new financial liabilities and the existing financial liabilities are
substantially different, the existing financial liabilities are derecognized
and the new financial liabilities are recognized.

If substantial changes are made to all or part of the contractual terms of
existing financial liabilities, the existing financial liabilities or part
thereof are derecognized, and the financial liability after the modification
of the terms is be recognized as a new financial liability.

When a financial liability is derecognized wholly or partially, the
difference between the book value of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid (including non-cash assets transferred out or
new financial liabilities assumed) is charged into the profit or loss for the
current period. If the Company repurchases some of its financial
liabilities, the entire book value of the financial liabilities will be
allocated on the reacquisition date based on the relative fair values of the
part that continues to be recognized and the derecognized part. The
difference between the book value allocated to the derecognized part and
the consideration paid (including the non-cash assets transferred out or
the new financial liabilities assumed) is charged into the profit or loss for
the current period.

Determination of fair values of financial asset and financial liability

For financial instruments that have active markets, the prices quoted in
the active markets are taken as their fair values. For financial instruments
that do not have active market, their fair values are determined by
valuation. At the time of valuation, the Company uses the valuation
techniques that are applicable in the current circumstance and are
sufficient to support the use of data and other information, and the
Company uses the inputs that are consistent with the characteristics of
assets or liabilities considered by market participants in transactions of
related assets or liabilities. Relevant observable inputs are preferred.
Unobservable inputs are used only if the relevant observable inputs are
not available or are not practicable to acquire.



(6). Measurement of and provision for impairment of financial assets

Except for financial assets that are measured at fair value through profit
or loss, the Company checks the book value of financial assets on each
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence that the financial assets
are impaired, the Company will make provision for the impairment.

1). Provision for impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

At the end of the period, if the fair value of available-for-sale financial
asset is seriously impaired, or if, after comprehensive consideration of
various relevant factors, it is expected that such downward trend is
non-temporary, it is deemed impairment has occurred, and the
accumulated losses resulting from the decline in the fair value originally
charged into the owner's equity are transferred out and the impairment
loss is recognized.

For available-for-sale debt instrument that has been recognized impaired,
if its fair value increases during subsequent accounting period and is
objectively related to the events that occur after the recognition of the
original impairment loss, the originally recognized impairment loss is
withdrawn and charged into the profit or loss for the current period.

Impairment losses arising from investments in available-for-sale equity
instruments are not withdrawn via profit or loss.

2). Provision for impairment of held-to-maturity investments

Impairment of held-to-maturity investments is measured using the same
impairment measurement method for receivables.

11. Provision for bad debts of accounts receivable

(1). Individual accounts receivable with significant amount and separate
bad debt provision

Judgment basis or amount standard for individual account receivable
with significant amount: An account receivable with a balance of 5
million yuan or more.

Bad debt provision for accounts receivable with significant amount:

Carry out separate impairment test. If there is objective evidence that an
account receivable has been impaired, provision for bad debt is made
based on the difference between the estimated present value of future
cash flow and its book value, which is charged into the profit or loss for
the current period. The accounts receivable, separate impairment test
shows that they have not been impaired, are included in appropriate bad
debt provision portfolio.



(2). Accounts receivable with bad debt provision by credit risk portfolio

Bad debt prowsnon for credit risk portfolios of accounts receivable
Portfolic 1~ Account age portfolio: account age is the basis for determmmg credit rlsk portfolio
' Low credit risk portfolio:

. (1) Guarantee deposits and deposits relating to production and operation activities,
Portfolio 2 . which expire and can be fully recovered;

i (2) Amounts due from subsidiaries in the Company's consolidation scope;
4 = \ (3) Amounts for which irrevocable debt repayment agreement has been signed.
~ Method for bad debt provision by portfolio
_Portfolic 1 | Account age analysis method

i Make bad debt provision based on the difference between the present value of its

Portfolio 2 | future cash flow and its book value.

Bad debt provision by account age analysis method:

Provision ratio of accounts receivableProvision ratio of other receivables

_Account ege 7 :(% ) o %)

vy S o m
l—2years _ 10.00 _ j 10.00

2—3 years _ 20.00 i 20.00

34 years ) 130.00 ] ] 30.00

4—5 years 40.00 ; 40.00
More than 5 years | 100.00 | 100.00

(3). Receivables without significant amount but with separate bad debt
provision

Reason for separate provision for bad debts: There is hard evidence that
there is a significant difference in recoverability.

Bad debt provision method: Provision for bad debts based on the
difference between the present value of its future cash flow and its book
value.

12. Inventory
(1). Classification of inventories

Inventories can be classified into raw materials, work in process,
development cost, product under development, auxiliary materials, etc.

(2). Measurement of inventory

Inventories issued by the Company are measured using the monthly
weighted average method.

(3). Determination of net realizable valued of inventories

For inventory of goods directly used for sale, such as finished goods,
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(5).

commodities, and materials for sale, during normal production and
operation, its net realizable value is determined to be its estimated selling
price minus its estimated selling expenses and related taxes. For
inventory of materials that need to be processed, during normal
production and operation, its net realizable value is determined to be the
estimated selling price of the finished product minus the estimated costs
to be incurred upon completion, estimated sales expenses and related
taxes and fees. For inventory held for performance of sales contract or
labor contract, its net realizable value is determined on the basis of
contract price. If the quantity of the held inventory is more than the
quantity ordered by sales contract, the net realizable value of the excess
inventory is determined on the basis of general selling price.

At the end of the period, inventory depreciation provisions are made for
individual inventory items. But for inventories with a large quantity and
low unit price, provision for inventory depreciation is made according to
inventory catcgory. For inventories that are related to product series
produced and sold in the same region with the same or similar end-use or
purpose and are difficult to measure separately from other items, a
collective inventory depreciation provision is made for them.

Except for clear evidence that the market price on the balance sheet date
is abnormal, the net realizable values of inventories are determined
based on the market prices on balance sheet date.

The net realizable values of inventories at the end of the period are
determined based on the market prices on balance sheet date.

Inventory system
The inventory system is a perpetual inventory system.
Amortization method for low-value consumables and packages

(O Low-value consumables are amortized by the one-off write-off
method,

@ Packages are amortized by the one-off write-off method.

Held-for-sale assets

Non-current assets or disposal groups that meet the following conditions are

classified as held-for-sale assets:

@

According to the practice of selling such assets or disposal groups in

similar transactions, they can be sold immediately under current conditions;

@

The sale is very likely to happen, that is, the Company has already made

a resolution on a sales plan and obtained a certain purchase commitment. It is
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expected that the sale will be completed within one year. If the relevant
regulations require approval from the relevant authority or supervisory
authority before they can be sold, the Company has already obtained approval.

Long-term equity investment

(1).

Q).

Judgment criteria for joint control and significant impact

Joint control refers to the sharing of control over an arrangement in
accordance with relevant agreements, and related activities of the
arrangement must be unanimously agreed by the parties that share the
right of control. Where the Company and other joint venturers jointly
exercise joint control over the investee and exercise joint control over the
investee and have rights over the net assets of the investee, the investee
is a joint venture of the Company.

Significant influence refers to the power to participate in making
decisions on the financial and operating decisions of an enterprise, but it
cannot control or jointly control the formulation of these policies with
other parties. If the Company can exert a significant influence on the
investee, the investee is an associate of the Company.

Determination of initial investment cost
1). Long-term equity investment formed by business combination

Business combination under common control: If the Company pays cash,
transfers non-cash assets, assumes debt, or issues equity securities as the
merger consideration, the initial investment cost of the long-term equity
investment is taken as the share of the book value of the owner's equity
in the ultimate controller's consolidated financial statements on the
combination date. If it is possible to exercise control over the investee
under common control due to additional investment and other reasons,
the share of the book value of the net assets of the merged entity in the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controller is recognized
as the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment on the
combination date. The difference between the initial investment cost of
long-term equity investment and the sum of the book value of the former
long-term equity investment and the book value of the new consideration
payment for the new shares on the combination date is adjusted to the
capital stock premium; if the capital stock premium is insufficient to
offset, the retained earnings are adjusted.

Business combination not under common control: The Company takes
the business combination cost recognized on the acquisition date as the
initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment. If it is possible
to control the investee not under common control due to additional
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investment and other reasons, the initial investment cost is calculated by
the cost method according to the sum of the book value of the originally
held equity investment and the additional investment cost.

2). Long-term equity investment acquired by other means

For long-term equity investment acquired by cash, the actual purchase
price paid is taken as its initial investment cost.

For long-term equity investment acquired by issuance of equity
securities, the fair value of the issued equity securities is taken as its
initial investment cost.

[f the exchange of non-monetary assets is of commercial nature and the
fair value of the assets exchanged can be reliably measured, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment acquired by exchange
of non-monetary assets is taken as the sum of the fair value of the assets
exchanged out and the relevant taxes and fees payable, unless there is
conclusive evidence that the fair value of the assets exchanged in is more
reliable. If the non-monetary assets exchange does not meet the above
premise, the sum of the book value of the assets exchanged out and the
related taxes and fees payable is taken as the initial investment cost of
the long-term equity investment.

For long-term equity investments acquired through debt restructuring,
the initial investment cost is recognized on the basis of fair value.

Subsequent measurement of long-term equity investment and
recognition of profit and loss

1). Long-term equity investment accounted for by cost method

The Company's long-term equity investment in subsidiaries is measured
using the cost method. Except for the actual payment of the investment
or the cash dividends or profits included in the consideration that have
been announced but not yet issued, the Company recognizes the current
investment income in accordance with the cash dividends or profits
declared to be released by the investee.

2). Long-term equity investment accounted for using the equity method

The long-term equity investment in associates and joint ventures is
accounted for using the equity method. If the initial investment cost is
greater than the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of the
investee at the time of investment, the initial investment cost of the
long-term equity investment is not adjusted. If the initial investment cost
is less than the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of the
investee at the time of investment, the difference is charged into the



profit or loss for the current period.

The investment income and other comprehensive income are recognized
separately according to the share of net profit and loss and other
comprehensive income realized by the investee that should be shared or
enjoyed by the Company, and the book value of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted at the same time. The book value of the long-term
equity investment is reduced according to the share of profit or cash
dividend declared by investee to be paid that should be enjoyed by the
Company. In case of changes in owner's equity of the investee other than
net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution, the
book value of the long-term equity investment is adjusted and charged
into the owner's equity.

The share of net profit or loss of the investee that should be enjoyed by
the Company is determined based on the fair value of the investee's
identifiable net assets at the time of acquiring the investment and the net
profit of the investee that has been adjusted according to the Company's
accounting policies and accounting period. During the period in which
the Company holds the investment, if the investee prepares its
consolidated financial statements, the part of the changes in net profit,
other comprehensive income and other owner's equity items in the
consolidated financial statements attributable to the investee is taken as
the basis for accounting.

The unrealized gains and losses from internal transactions between the
Company and its associates or joint ventures are calculated based on the
proportion of the Company's equity attributable to the Company and
offset, and the investment income is recognized on this basis. Unrealized
internal transaction losses with the investee, which are assets impairment
losses, are recognized in full.

When the Company recognizes the share of the investee's losses that
should be shared by the Company, it should be dealt with in the
following order: First, offset the book value of long-term equity
investment. Second, if the book value of the long-term equity investment
is not sufficient to offset, continue to recognize the investment loss and
offset the book value of long-term receivables against the book value of
long-term equity that substantially constitutes the net investment in the
investee. Finally, after the above-mentioned process, if the Company still
undertakes additional obligations in accordance with the investment
contract or agreement, the expected liabilities are recognized according
to the expected obligations assumed and charged into the investment loss
for the current period.

3). Disposal of long-term equity investment



When disposing of a long-term equity investment, the difference
between the book value and the actual purchase price is charged into the
profit or loss for the current period.

For the long-term equity investment accounted for using the equity
method, the part originally charged into other comprehensive income is
accounted for in proportion using the same basis as the investee’s direct
disposal of the relevant assets or liabilities when disposing of the
investment. The owner’s equity recognized as a result of changes in the
owners’ equity other than the net profit or loss, other comprehensive
income, and profit distribution of the investee is transferred in profit or
loss for the current period, except for other comprehensive income
arising from re-measurement of changes in net liabilities or net assets in
defined benefit plans by investee.

[f the Company loses joint control or significant influence over the
investee due to the disposal of some equity investment, the remaining
equity after disposal shall be accounted for according to the criteria for
recognition and measurement of financial instruments, and the difference
between the fair value and book value on the date of loss of joint control
or significant influence is charged into the profit or loss for the current
period. The other comprehensive income recognized in the original
equity investment accounted for using the equity method is accounted for
on the same basis as if the investee had directly disposed of the relevant
assets or liabilities when terminating the use of equity method for
accounting. The owner’s equity recognized as a result of changes in the
owners’ equity of the investee other than net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income, and profit distribution shall all be transferred to
the profit or loss for the current period when terminating the use of
equity method for accounting.

Where the Company losses control right over the investee due to
disposal of part of equity investment or other investors' capital increase
in the subsidiary, in the preparation of individual financial statements, if
the remaining equity can exert joint control or significant influence on
the investee, it is accounted for by the equity method, and the residual
equity is deemed adjusted by equity method since its acquisition. If the
remaining equity cannot exert joint control or significant influence on the
investee, it shall be accounted for in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the financial instrument recognition and measurement
criteria. The difference between the fair value and the book value on the
date of loss of control is recognized in profit or loss for the current
period,

When disposing equity acquired by business combination through



15.

16.

additional investment or other method, in the preparation of individual
financial statements, if the remaining equity after disposal is accounted
for using the cost method or equity method, the equity investment held
before the acquisition date is accounted for using the equity method, and
other comprehensive income and other owner's equity recognized
therefrom are carried forward on a pro-rata basis. If the remaining equity
after disposal is accounted for in accordance with the financial
instrument recognition and measurement criteria, the recognized other
comprehensive income and other owners' equity are carried forward in
full.

Investment property

Investment property refers to property held to earn rentals or capital
appreciation, or both, including land use rights that have been leased, land use
rights that are held and prepared for transfer after appreciation, buildings that
have been leased (including buildings that have been built or developed for
rent and those under construction for future rent).

The Company uses the cost model to measure the existing investment property.
For investment property measured according to the cost model - the rental
building adopts the same depreciation policy as the fixed assets of the
Company, and the land use right for rental is executed according to the same
amortization policy as the intangible assets.

Fixed assets
(1). Fixed asset recognition criteria:

Fixed assets refer to tangible assets that are held for the purpose of
producing goods, providing labor services, renting, or business
management and have a service life longer than one accounting period.
Fixed assets are recognized when they meet both the following
conditions:

(D The economic benefits associated with the fixed assets are likely to
flow into the Company;
@ The cost of the fixed assets can be reliably measured.

(2). Depreciation method

The depreciation of fixed assets is calculated using the straight-line
method and the production method. The depreciation rate is determined
based on the category, estimated service life and estimated net residual
value of fixed asset. If the service life of each component of a fixed asset
is different or provides economic benefits to the enterprise in different
ways, then different depreciation rates or depreciation methods are
selected and depreciation is provided separately.



If the fixed assets acquired under finance lcase can reasonably determine
that the leased assets will be acquired at the expiration of the lease term,
the depreciation shall be made within the useful life of the leased assets;
if it is not reasonable to determine the ownership of the leased assets
when the lease term expires, depreciation is provided for the shorter of
the lease term and the remaining useful life of the leased asset.

Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc., a subsidiary of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as "VGM Plc"), depreciates assets related to mine exploration
and exploitation using the production method, and depreciates other
fixed assets using the straight-line method.

The depreciation period, estimated net residual value rate and annual
depreciation rate of fixed assets that are depreciated according to the
straight-line method are as follows:

Catego ’ Depreciation - Depreciation . Residuals " Annual depreciation
) £ory . method . period (year) . rate (%) _rate (%a)
Houses and  Straight-line { , Lo o _
buildings  : method ' 3—45 years O 5% i 2“.11 3?.33
Transportati  Straight-line 3—12 years 0—5% . 7.92-33.33
on tools , method ! ) T .
Machines . Straight-line !
and i method 4—12 years 0—5% 7.92-25.00
equipment : r

{3). Identification and valuation of fixed assets acquired under finance

Lease

When the fixed assets rented by the Company meet one or more of the
following criteria, it is recognized as fixed assets acquired under finance
Lease:

(L At the expiration of the lease term, the ownership of the leased asset
is transferred to the Company.

(2 The Company has the option to purchase the leased asset. The
purchase price is much lower than the fair value of the leased asset when
the option is exercised.

3 The leasc period accounts for the majority of the useful life of the
leased asset.

@ The present value of the minimum lease payment on the lease start
date is not significantly different from the fair value of the leased asset.

On the lease start date, the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the current value of the minimum lease payments is taken as the entry



value of the leased asset, the minimum lease payment amount is taken as
the entry value of long-term payables, and the difference is taken as the
unrecognized financing expense.

17. Construction in progress

For the construction-in-progress item, the Company takes the necessary
expenditure incurred for the construction before the asset is ready for its
intended use as the entry value of fixed asset. If the fixed assets constructed
have reached the expected usable status, but have not yet completed the final
accounts, they will be transferred to the fixed assets at the estimated value
based on the project budget, cost or actual project cost from the date of
reaching the expected usable status, and depreciation of fixed assets is made
according to the Company's fixed assets depreciation policy. After the
completion of the final accounts, the original temporary valuation will be
adjusted according to the actual cost, but the original depreciation amount will
not be adjusted.

18. Borrowing Cost
(1). Recognition criteria for capitalized borrowing cost

The borrowing costs shall include interest on borrowings, amortization
of discounts or premiums, ancillary expenses, and exchange balance on
foreign currency borrowings.

Where the borrowing costs incurred to the Company can be directly
attributable to the acquisition and construction or production of assets
eligible for capitalization, it shall be capitalized and credited into the
costs of relevant assets. Other borrowing costs shall be recognized as
expenses on the basis of the actual amount incurred, and shall be credited
into the current profit and loss.

Where the borrowing costs incurred to the Company can be directly
attributable to the acquisition and construction or production of assets
eligible for capitalization, it shall be capitalized and credited into the
costs of relevant assets. Other borrowing costs shall be recognized as
expenses on the basis of the actual amount incurred, and shall be credited
into the current profit and loss.

Assets eligible for capitalization refer to assets that require long time of
acquisition, construction or production activities to achieve the intended
use or sale status, such as fixed assets, investment real estate and
inventories.

Capitalization begins when the borrowing costs meet the following
conditions:
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3).
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(1) The asset disbursements have already incurred, which shall include
the cash, transferred non-cash assets or interest bearing debts paid for the
acquisition and construction or production activities for preparing assets
eligible for capitalization.

(2) The borrowing costs have already incurred.

(3) The acquisition and construction or production activities which are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have already
started.

Capitalization period of borrowing costs

Capitalization period refers to the time of period from the time that the
borrowing costs start capitalization to the time that the capitalization
ends, excluding the period of suspension of capitalization

When the asset under acquisition, construction or production that meets
the conditions for capitalization reaches the status ot being ready for use
or sale, the capitalization of borrowing costs ceases.

When part of the assets under acquisition, construction or production are
completed and can be used separately, the capitalization of the borrowing
costs of such assets shall cease.

When the various parts of the assets purchased, constructed or produced
are completed separately, but they must not be used or sold until the
entire assets are completed, the capitalization of the borrowing costs
related to such parts ceases.

Suspension Period of capitalization:

Capitalization of borrowing costs shall be suspended if the assets eligible
for capitalization are abnormally interrupted during the purchase,
construction or production process, and the interruption period lasts for
more than 3 consecutive months. If the suspension is necessary for the
assets acquired, constructed, or produced to reach the intended use or
sale status, the borrowing costs shall continue to be capitalized. The
borrowing costs incurred during the suspension shall be recognized as
the current profit and loss and continued to be capitalized until the
acquirement, construction, and production activities restart.

How to calculate the capitalization rate and capitalization amount of
borrowing costs

For the funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization
shall be determined as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that
borrowing during the period less the interest of unutilized amount of the



borrowing and any investment income on the temporary investment of
those borrowings. For the funds borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization shall be determined by applying the weighted
average capital expenditure of the accumulated capital expenditure in
excess of the specially borrowed funds to the capitalization rate of the
general borrowings used. The capitalization rate is determined based on
the weighted average interest rate of the general borrowings.

19 Intangible Assets
(1). Measurement of intangible assets
1) Intangible assets are initially measured at cost.

The costs of purchased intangible assets include the purchase price,
related taxes, and other expenses directly attributable to the asset's
intended use. If the purchase price of intangible assets exceeds the
normal credit conditions and the payment is deferred and it is of
financing nature, the cost of intangible assets is determined on the basis
of the current value of the purchase price. The intangible assets obtained
by the debtor for debt repayment by debt restructuring are determined
based on the fair value of the intangible assets, and the difference
between the book value of the debt to be restructured and the fair value
of the intangible assets used for debt repayment is included in the current
profit and loss.

Where the non-monetary assets exchange is commercial in nature and
the fair value of the assets exchanged can be reliably measured, the
intangible assets exchanged for non-monetary assets will be recognized
based on the fair value of the assets exchanged, unless there is
conclusive evidence that the fair value of the assets exchanged is more
reliable. If the non-monetary assets exchange that does not meet the
above conditions is met, the book value of the assets exchanged out and
the relevant taxes and fees payable shall be deemed as the cost of
intangible assets, and the profit and loss will not be recognized.

2) Subsequent measurement

The Company judges the useful life of an intangible asset when
acquiring it.

The intangible asset shall be deemed as having indefinite useful life and
shall not be amortized it the period in which it brings economic benefits
to the Company could not be predicted.

(2). Estimation of intangible assets having definite useful life
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(4).

(5).

Intangible assets having definite useful life are amortized over the useful
life systematically and reasonably in the expected way that the economic
benefits associated with the intangible assets are realized. If it is
impossible to reliably determine the expected method of realization, they
are amortized using the straight-line method. The mining rights held by
Sichuan Pingwu Zhongjin Mining Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as
“Sichuan Pingwu™), a subsidiary of the Company, are amortized using
the straight-line method. The mining rights held by VGM Plc, a
subsidiary of the Company, are amortized using the production method.

Basis for determination of intangible assets having indefinite useful
life and the procedures for reviewing of the useful life

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life shall not be amortized,
but shall be tested for impairment and the useful life shall be reviewed
every year.

Specific criteria for classifying research and development stages

Expenditure on internal research and development projects is divided
into research stage expenditures and development stage expenditures

Research stage: Research is original and planned investigation
undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding.

Development is the application of research findings or other knowledge
to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved
materials, devices, products, processes, systems or services before the
start of commercial production or use.

Specific conditions for capitalization of development phase
expenditures

In the research phase of an internal project, the expenditure is recognized
as an intangible asset if, and only if all of the following can be
demonstrated:

1) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale.

2) its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

3) how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits, Among other things, the existence of a market for the output of
the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset.

4) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
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complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset.

5) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The expenditures in development stage are recorded into the current
profit and loss when they are incurred if not meeting the conditions
above. The expenditures in development phase are recorded into the
current profit and loss when they are incurred.

Impairment of long-term assets

Long-term equity investment, investment property measured in cost mode,
fixed assets, construction in progress, and intangible assets with definite useful
life shall be tested for impairment if any indication of impairment exists as of
the balance sheet date. If the result of the impairment test indicates that the
recoverable amount of the asset is lower than its book value, impairment
provision shall be made based on the difference and recorded into impairment
loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and the present value of the expected future cash flow of the
asset. If it is difficult to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
determine the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. An asset group is the smallest portfolio of assets that can generate
cash inflow independently. Asset impairment provision is calculated and
recognized on the basis of individual asset.

Goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite useful life shall be tested for
impairment at [east at the end of each year.

The Company tests the goodwill for impairment. For the goodwill acquired in
business combination, the book value is amortized to the relevant asset group
on a reasonable basis from the date of purchase. If it is difficult to classify the
intangible asset to a relevant asset group, classify it to the relevant asset group
combination. When allocating the book value of goodwill to the relevant asset
group or asset group combination, allocate the fair value of each asset group or
combination according to proportion of the fair value of the relevant asset
group or asset group combination in the total fair value. If the fair value is hard
to be reliably measured, allocate it according to proportion of the book value
of each asset group or asset group combination in the total book value.

When performing impairment test on the relevant asset group or asset group
combination containing goodwill, if there is any sign of impairment of the
asset group or asset group combination related to goodwill, firstly test the asset
group or asset group combination that does not contain goodwill, calculate the
recoverable amount and compare it with the relevant book value to recognize
the corresponding impairment loss. Then test the asset group or asset group
combination containing goodwill for impairment, and compare the book value
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of these related asset groups or asset group combinations (including the book
value of the amortized goodwill) and the recoverable amount. If the
recoverable amount of the asset group combination is lower than its book
value, the impairment loss of goodwill is recognized. The above asset
impairment loss is not carried forward in the subsequent accounting period
once recognized.

Employee Compensation

).

Q).

@)

Accounting of short-term compensation

During the accounting period in which the employees work for the
Company, the Company recognizes the actual short-term compensation
actually incurred as liabilities and record into the profit or loss or cost of
related asset in the current period.

For the social insurance contributions and housing provident fund paid
by the Company for employees, and the labor union funds and employee
education funds provided according to the regulations, the Company
recognizes the amount of employee benefits according to the basis and
proportion during the accounting periods in which the employees render
services for the Company.

Non-monetary benefits are measured at the fair value if they may be
measured reliably.

Accounting treatment of post-employment benefits
1) Defined benefit plan

The Company pays basic pension insurance and unemployment
insurance for the employees according to the relevant regulations of local
government, which are calculated in the accounting period in which
employees render services for the Company according to the local
payment base and proportion, recognized as liabilities, and recorded into
the current profit and loss or cost of related asset.

Accounting of termination benefits

The Company is required to recognize the employee compensation
liabilities resulting from termination benefits at the earlier of when it can
no longer withdraw the provided benefits due to termination of
employment or when it recognizes the costs or expenses related to
restructuring of the termination benefits.

Estimated liabilities

(1).

Recognization of estimated liabilities

The obligation pertinent to litigation, debt guarantee, onerous contract,



reorganization or contingency is recognized as estimated liabilities when
all the following conditions are met:

1) Such obligations are current to the Company;

2) Such obligations, if fulfilied, will probably result in outflow of
economic benefits from the Company;

3) Such obligations bear an amount that can be reliably measured.
(2) Measurement of estimated liabilities

The estimated liabilities shall be initially measured in accordance with
the best estimate of the expenditure required for the performance of the
relevant current obligation, and in the determination of the best estimate,
comprehensive consideration shall be given to the risks, uncertainties,
and time value of money related to the contingencies. If the time value of
money has a significant impact, the best estimate will be determined
after discounting the relevant future cash outflows.

The best estimate is processed separately in the following cases: If the
required expenditure has a continuous range (or section), and the
probability of occurrence of the various results within the range is the
same, the best estimate follows the middle value of the range: The
average of the lower limit amount is determined. when the required
expenditures could not form a continuous range (or section), or although
a continuous range is formed but the possibility of occurrence of various
results within the range is not the same, if the contingency relates to a
single item, then the best estimate shall be determined based on the most
possible amount; if the contingency involves multiple items, the best
estimate shall be determined based on the various possible outcomes and
associated probability.

If all or part of the expenses required by the Company for repayment of
estimated liabilities are expected to be compensated by a third party, the
amount of compensation shall be recognized separately as an asset when
it is basically determined to be receivable, and the amount of
compensation recognized shall not exceed the book value of the
estimated liability.

23 Revenue
(1). General principles for recognition of the income from sale of goods

1) The Company has transferred the major risks and rewards of the
ownership of the goods to the purchaser;

2) The Company neither retains the continuing management rights
linked to the ownership nor exercises effective control over the goods



sold;
3) The amount of income can be reliably measured;
4) The relevant economic benefits are likely to flow into the Company;

5) The relevant costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably
measured

(2). Detailed principles

1) The revenue from sale of real estate is recognized when the
following conditions are met: The operating income is recognized as
realized when the major risks in the title and the consideration of the
house have been transferred to the buyer, and the seller no longer
maintains the management rights normally associated with ownership or
takes effective control on the real estate, and the costs related to the sale
of the house may be reliably measured. That is to say, the revenue is
recognized when the house is completed and passes the acceptance
inspection, the Company signs the sale contract, obtains the payment
certificate from the buyer, and completes the real estate transfer
formalities.

2) Revenue from sale of gold shall be recognized when the following
conditions are all satisfied: The major risks and consideration of
ownership of gold have been transferred to the buyer, and seller no
longer maintains the management rights normally associated with
ownership or takes effective control, the buyer has received or obtained
the settlement statement from the customer, and the cost related to the
sale of the gold can be reliably measured.

24 Government grants

{1). Types

Government grants refer to the monetary assets and non-monetary asset
obtained by the Company from the government free of charge, which are
classified into grants related to assets and grants related to income.

Grants related to assets are government grants obtained by the Company
for purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Grants
related to income are government grants other than those related to
assets.

The Company recognizes the grants related to assets according to the
following criteria:

The government grants are recognized as grants related to assets if they
are specially used for acquirement or construction of assets as explicitly



2)

(3

required in the government grant document.

The Company recoghizes the grants related to income according to the
following criteria:

The government grants are recognized as grants related to income if the
government grant document does not explicitly specify that such grants
will be specially used for acquirement or construction of assets.

Time for recognition

The government grants are recognized when they are actually received or
adequate evidences are available to prove that the government grants
may be obtained.

Accounting

Government grants related to assets are written off against the book
value of the underlying assets or recognized as deferred income. The
government grants related to assets recognized as deferred income shall
be recognized as profit or loss in the current period in a reasonable and
systematic manner within the useful life of the relevant assets (as other
income if related to the daily activities of the Company, or non-operating
income if not);

The government grants related to income, which are used to compensate
the related costs/expenses or losses of the Company in the future period,
are recognized as deferred income and recognized as profit or loss in the
current period in which the relevant costs/expenses or losses are
recognized (as other income if related to the daily activities of the
Company, or non-operating income if not), or written off against the
relevant expenses or losses; if they are used to compensate the related
costs or losses incurred by the Company, they are directly recognized as
profit or loss in the current profit and loss (as other income if related to
the daily activities of the Company, or non-operating income if not) or
written off against the relevant expenses or losses.

The policy preferential loan interest discounts granted to the Company
are divided into the following two cases for separate accounting:

(1) If the finance department allocates the interest subsidy funds to the
loan bank, and the loan bank issues loan to the Company at the policy
preferential interest rate, the Company will take the actual amount of the
botrrowed money as the book value of the loan, and calculate the
borrowing cost according to the loan principal and the policy preferential
interest rate.

(2) If the finance department directly allocates the discounted funds to
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the Company, the Company will write off against the relevant borrowing
costs.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

The deferred income tax assets for deductible temporary differences shall be
recognized up to the taxable income that might be obtained in the future period
to set off against the deductible temporary differences. For deductible losses
and tax credits that can be carried forward in subsequent years, the deferred
income tax assets are recognized up to the taxable income that might be
obtained in the future period to set oft against the deductible loss and tax
credits.

Taxable temporary differences are recognized as deferred income tax liabilities
unless any special circumstance exists.

The special circumstances under which deferred income tax assets or deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognized include: initial recognition of
goodwill, other transactions or events which do not affect the accounting profit
or taxable income (deductible toss) at the occurrence unless business
combination.

An entity shall offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities if, and only if,
the entity: (a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts;
and (b) intends cither to scttle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

An entity shall offset deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if, and only
if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:
(i) the same taxable entity; or (ii} different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

Lease
(1). Accounting of operating lease

1) The lease payments paid by the Company for lease of assets shall be
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the entire lease
term (including the rent-free period). The initial direct expenses paid by
the Company for the lease transaction are recognized as expenses in the
current period.
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When the lessor of the asset bears the expenses related to the lease that
should be borne by the Company, the Company will deduct such
expenses from the total rent, and the rent after deduction will be
recognized as expenses in the current period over the lease term.

2) The rent received by the Company for leasing assets is recognized as
lease related income on a straight-line basis over the entire lease term
(including the rent-free period). The initial direct expenses paid by the
Company related to the lease transaction are recognized as expenses in
the current expenses, and if the amount is significant, are capitalized and
recognized as income in the current by installment over the lease term on
the same basis with recognition of lease-related income.

When the Company bears the expenses related to the lease that should be
borne by the leasee, the Company will deduct such expenses from the
total rent, and the rent after deduction will be recognized allocated over
the lease term,

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operation refers to a company's separately distinguishable
component that meets one of the following conditions, and that component has
been disposed of or divided into “held for sale™:

(1) The component represents an independent main business or a separate
main business area;

(2) This component is part of an associated plan that is intended to be disposed
of in an independent main business or a separate major business area;

(3) This component is a subsidiary that is specifically acquired for resale.
Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates
(1). Changes in significant accounting policies

Implementation of the Notice on Revising and Issuing the Format of
Financial Statements of General Enterprises in 2018 Issued by the
Ministry of Finance

On June 15, 2018, the Ministry of Finance issued the Notice on Revising
and Issuing the Format of Financial Statements of General Enterprises in
2018 (CK [2018] No. 15 to revise the financial statement format of
general enterprises. The main impacts on the Company are listed as

follows:
Content and Reasons for Changes in | Affected [tem and Amounts
Accounting Policies 7 in Financial Statements

(1) In the balance sheet, the “Notes The “Notes receivable” and “Accounts




Content and Reasons for Changes in
_ Accounting Policies_

receivable” and “Accounts receivable” .

are combined as *“Notes receivable and

accounts receivable”, “Notes payable™
and “Accounts payable” are combined:
“Notes

payables”,

as payable and accounts
"Interest
"Dividend receivable" are incorporated .
“Other
payable” and "Dividend payable” are
"Other

"Fixed assets disposal” is incorporated

receivable" and

into receivables”, "Interest ;
> i

incorporated into payables”, .

LIS

into “Fixed assets”, “Project materials™
is incorporated inte “Construction in’
progress”, and “Special payables” is
incorporated into “Long-term payables™.
The data

accordingly.

comparison is adjusted

| The

Affected Item and Amounts
in Financial Statements

“Notes

for

receivable” are combined as
receivable and accounts receivable”,
which the amount is 4,505,364.61 in the
current period and 9,366,920.90 in the last

period.

“Notes payable” and “Accounts
payable” are combined as “Notes payable
and accounis payables”, for which the

amount 1s 259,04940825 in the current
period and 212,021,678.50 in the last period.
The amount increased in “Other receivables™
is 0.00 for both the current period and the
last period.

The amount of “Other payables” is increased
by 69,572,911.45 for the current period and
50,356,469.67 for the last period.

The amount of “Fixed assets™ is increased by
0.00 for both the current period and the last

period.

. The amount of “Construction in progress” is

" increased by 0.00 for both the current period

. and the last period.

' The amount of “Long-term payables” is

(2) A new item “R&D Expenses” ist
added in the Profit & Loss Statement, |
under which the “R&I} expenses”™ under
“Management Expenses” is presented .

separately. Under the “Financial :
expenses” in the Profit & Loss |
Statement, two items "Including:’

Interest expenses" and “Interest income”
are added. The comparison data is -
adjusted accordingly.
(3) In the “Statement of Changes in:
Owners’ Equity”, a new item “ltems
Carrted Forward and Retained for
Changes in Defined Benefit Plan”. The

increased by 0.00 for both the current period

and the last period.

The amount of “Management expenses” is
decreased by 0.00 for both the current period
and the last period, and it is reclassified into
“R&D expenses”.

The amount of “Items Carried Forward and
Retained for Changes in Defined Benefit
Plan” is 0.00 for both the current period and

. the last period.

comparison data is adjusted accordingly. |




(2). Changes in significant accounting estimates

None.
IV. Taxation

1. Main tax type and rate

Tax Type

VAT

Urban maintenance and construction tax |

Education surcharge
Local education surcharge

Corporate income tax

Land appreciation tax

Property tax

Gold tax
ROYALTY

]
Tax Basis . TaxRate (%)

. Income from sales of goods and

| taxable services calculated :
. . C17%, 16%, 11%,
according to the tax law, with the !
) . . 9%, 6%, 5%
allowable input tax amount in the

. current period deducted.

: Actually paid VAT amount ] T 7%, 5%

' Tumnover tax payable ‘ 3% .
* Turnover tax payable ) 2% )
Lj‘axablc income T 25%, 20%

- Calculated  and

Added value amount generated ' paid in 4 levels

from paid transfer of the of extra

- state-owned land use right and the ’ progressive  tax
property rights over the ground rates (30-60). For

buildings and other attachments. . provisional  tax
* For the income from pre-selling of rate, local

houses, the tax shall be based on regulations in the
" the tax rate stipulated in the place | place where the
i where the house is located, house is located

o ~, shallapply.
Valorem property tax: 1.2% of the ‘

. original value of prope less
| oriE Property 1658 1 | 204, 12%

' 30.00%; |

i Rent-based property tax: 12%. -
Goldsales L 3%
. Gold sales I 39

According to notice of the Ministry of Mineral Resources of Fiji in May 2018,
Vatukoula Gold Mines PLC (Fiji) is required to pay the royalty at 3% of the
gold sales to the Ministry of Mineral Resources.

Disclosure of any other taxpayer to which any other income tax rate may

apply.

Taxpayer

Vatukoula Gold Mines PLC

Income Tax Rate (%)

20




2. Preferential tax

According to CS [2002] No. 142 “Notice on Issues of Gold Taxation Policy”
of the State Administration of Taxation, the sales of gold products produced by
the domestic subsidiaries of ZRC are exempt from VAT.

V. Notes to Major Items of Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Monetary funds

Item - l Closing Balance _ | Opening Balance
Cash on hand ) $37,127.79 o o 24,720.68
Cashinbank - 142,248,171.59 | 64,634,934.54

Other . 8,004,38527 . 40,000235.03
Total | 50,289,684.65 : 104,668,89025

Including: total amount deposited 3 f
9,090,514.02 . 8,199,227.38
abroad :

The monetary funds of which the use is restricted due to mortgage, pledge, or freezing,
or the repatriation is restricted as deposited abroad are detailed as follows:

o  Item ) : Closing Balance Opening Balance
Letter of credit deposit ) . . 31,288,125.00
Enyiypnmeptal governance deposit . 1,258,423.40 : 1,254,602.9?”

Fixed deposit o o 4,100,262.93 4,044,884.10

Mortgage deposit S 2,645,698.94  3,421,622.96 )
Frozen funds j 1,132,540.07 ’

Total o P 9,136,925.34 . 40,009,235.03
Including: total amount deposited

. 4,044,884.10
abroad | 4,100,262.93 |

Additional notes:

(1) For details on the restricted monetary funds, refer to Note V (44) "Assets
with Restricted Ownership or Use Right".

(2) For details on the foreign-currency monetary funds, refer to Note V (45)
"Foreign-currency Monetary Funds".

2. Notes receivable and accounts receivable

Item . Closing Balance _ Opening Balance

Notes receivable
Account receivable ' 4,505,364.61 9,366,920.90

Total ' 4,505,364.6] | 9,366,920.90
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2)

3)

In the combination, the accounts receivable with bad debt provision made in

account age method:

Account Age

Within 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years
é-4iyears

4-5 yéa;rs
Over 5 years

‘Total

Closing Balance

i Account

‘ | i3ad debt * Proportion
i receivable provision (%)
344614254 17230703 ' 5.00
590,588.00 59,058.80 " 10.00

' h | £ 20.00
100000000 | 30000000 . 30.00
b o ' 40.00

, 16,520,178.22 16,520,178.22 ' 100.00

$21,556,908.76  ; 17,051,544.15

Bad debt provisions made, carried forward or over in this period:

A provision of 3,586,254.00 was carried forward or over in this period.

Top five accounts receivable by closing balance classified by debtor

Debtor

Zibo Zhongrun Xinmate Co., :

Lid,

The Perth Mint

Zibo Runze Stor;es Co., Ltd.
Bin Guobin

Liu Hongyun

Total

Ciosing Balance

, Proportion  in |

1 ¢ total ofE Bad

" Amount ‘ : ..

’ | accounts i provision

" receivable (%)

| 13,497,006.84 6261 ' 11,645,158.77
i é S

P 1,334,141.79 ! 6.19 | 66,707.09

£ 1,000,00000  4.64 . 300,000.00

' 590,588.00 274 50,058.80

S P " ; "

' $8,207.74 1 0.41 | 88,207.74

1 16,509,944.37  © 76.59 ' 12,159,132.40

The rent receivable to be paid by Zibo Zhongrun Xinmate Co., Ltd. to ZRC
was pledged to Zibo Branch of Weihai Commercial Bank, with the term

expiring on November 30, 2023. Refer to Note V (44} “Assets with Restricted
Ownership or Use Right” for details.

debt



3

(1.

).

4

Advance payment

Advance payment by account age

Closing Balance

: Opening Balance

Account age | Proportion ! « Proportion
i Book Balance J i Book Balance g
: S . o) 1 , RO

Within | year ~ 19,763,821.11 | 97.27 12552431416 46.82

1-2 years _ ¥ | 8,750.00 £0.02

2-3 years . 1,000.00 £ 0.01 _28,684,64535 | 52.61
Over 3 years 552,68@.41 ) 272 } 300,377.40 }r 055
Total . 20,317,507.52 i 100.00 . 54.518,086.91 | 100.00

The decrease in this period refers to the amount of RMB 36.4 million
recovered after the Phase HI villa project contract with Zibo Real Estate
Company Limited was terminated.

Top five advance payments by closing balance classified by payer

Payer

Zibo Branch of Shandong Huicheng
_ Construction Co., Ltd.

, Closing Balance

Jinan Qingong International Trade

Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Pipe International Economic !
_ & Trading Corporation

Shandong Xinguo
Development Co.,

Mining Technical -
Ld. |

Beijing Yingxiang Science andi
Technology Co., Ltd.

Total

15,555,09;1.83 ‘

13.222.743.47 |

492,187.49 |

, Proportion in Total of

?Closing Balance of

~ Advance  Payments

(%)

1

750,644 42 |

698,018.58

4

391,500.87 |

4
£
¢
i

65.08
3.69
3.44
2.42

1.93

76.56

Other accounts receivable

[tem

Interest receivable

Dividend receivable

Other

Total

OV,

879,294,455.24 |

Closing Balance

87929445524

Opening Balance

776,667,317.70

776,667,317.70
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Other receivables with significant single amount and separately made bad debt
provision

: Closing Balance
Other receivables

(by company) Other } Bad Debt  : Proportion

. ! . f Reason
| Receivable | Provision ! (%)

e mmen

. Itis
_ estimated

Qilu Real Estate Co.,: ’ | that the
i 166,943,000.04  166,943,000.04 © 100.00 :
Ltd. _ debt could

not be

: . recovered.
! :

Total £ 166,943,000.04 ° 166,943,000.04 | 100.00

In the combinations, other receivables with the bad debt provision made in
account age method:

Closing Balance

Account Age . , . ; -

Other Receivables  Bad Debt Provision : Proportion (%)

Within [ year 5,721,288.08 28606440 500

» 1-2 years 3-4,352,640.70- - 435,264.0'? “ lb.OO 7

23years 597.965,462.83  119,593,002.57  20.00

Jdyears 3143253067 | 942975920 3000

4-5 years 1 271,448.13 10857925 4000

Over 5 years l 80,56],0-91.87 ‘ 80,561,091.87_ 100.00“ 7

Total ' 72030446228 21041385136 |

In the combinations, other receivables with bad debt provision made in other
methods:

Closing Balance

i

Combination . ! Bad Debt ‘
. Other Receivables . ! Proportion (%)
] Provision
Combination 2 | 369,300,000.00 | 5
Total ' 369,300,000.00

i
| | i

Notes: For the amounts without bad debt provision, refer to Note XII (1)



2) Bad debt provision made, carried forward or over in this period:

In this period, the amount of bad debt provision made is RMB 64,887,977.15,
the amount carried forward is RMB 210,099,348.65, and the amount impacted
by translation of foreign-currency financial statements is RMB 2,160.68.

3) Other receivables classified by nature

Type . Closing Book Balance Opening Book Balance

Receivables from transfer !

of shares and creditor’s : 536,243,000.04 ! 598.622,348.69
rights ;
Receivables in  account | 7 l
 80,763,433.77 : 76,095,429.80
current )
Earnest money - 549,056,000.00 522,736,000.00
Iron ore construction fee . :
. )  48,933,803.74 - 48,933,803.74
and capital occupation fee | '
Deposits and margins 39,638,350.92 . 48.843,633.84
B i fr t
OITOWINgS Irom - Pret  se6.527.25 708,093.50
cash . ‘
Amounts received or paid |
1,695,345.92 : 3,559,225.35
on behalf
Total | 1,256,916,461.64  1,299,498,534.92

4) Top five other receivables by closing balance classified by debtor

] Proportion
in chtal : Bad Debt
Nature of ’ Closing Provision
Debtor | a‘ . Closing Balance . Account Age | Balance of © s
- Receivables : : | : Closing
: i Other Balance
: ; . _ Receivables
| | SR
; E . i ! :
Li Xiaoming , et 549,056,000.00 2-3 years 43.68 ' 109,811,200.00
R , money \ . . : . i
Shandong ; ‘
Ansheng ! Transfer of | ;
Asset \ i d. | :
ssets Sy and 400300,000.00 | Over S years | 29.38 .
Management  creditor’s : ;
Group Co., ; rights : f
Ltd. | ] , , :
ilu Real: T fi ‘ |
Qilu - Real ; Transfer of | 043,000,041 Over 5 years 13.28 ' 166,943,000.04

Estate Co., : equity and 1




i ' | Proportion

|
| | inTotal |
i | tod | Bad Debt
| H osing | ..
. Nature of | . ‘ ; i Provision
Debtor . : Closing Balance - Account Age . Balance of ; .
i Receivables | i ! ! Closing
: ; i : Other ¢ Balance
; . Receivables |
- o L ! N ¢
Ltd. | creditor’s ’ 5
: rights . _ . A’ |
¢ Iron ore |
PSEl | construction 12 years: -
International | fee  and . 1 3,969,949.73; | ‘
: . - 48,933,803.74 | "7 * 1 3.89 ' 9,389,765.78
Trade Co., capital ; 0 2-3 years: ! :
Lid. . occupation } + 44.963,854.01
| fee ’ R . )
, : i34 ears: . :
Zibo Security and 30765 6(3;0 00; | :
Housing Y 35,935,600.00 703,008,095 ' 14,399,680.00
B watranty : : Over 5 years: |
yreau ; : \
L \ : ) . 5,170,000.00 | o )
Total - 1,170,168,403.78 93.09 . 300,543,645.82
5 Inventories
(1).  Classification of inventories
: Closing Balance j Opening Balance
ftem ! Depreciation Depreciation
Book Balance L  Book Value Book Balance | . Book Value
’ Provision ! , Provision
Raw : : ' .
150,127,199.54 . 1,110,830.11  49,016,369.43  51,936,696.23 151,936,696.23
materials ; , : ‘ i
Unfinished , , I l i
18,935,248.01 ' 18,935248.01  19,084,957.66 | 1 19,084,957.66
products i . ; !
Development : E l i ,
1 267,295.122.88 1267,295,122.88 182,529,465.07 + 182,529,465.07
costs ! : ’
- - i - ,% - a PR E ' . - ,E -
Development | ‘ ' ‘ : '
1 106,531,381.72, 18,382,792.36 , 88,148,589.36 | 287,946,291.62 ' 25,462,335.64 : 262,483,955.98
products j , i ;
Auxiliary : .
. i1,196,311.90 | 1,196,311.90 [ 1,270,658.23 - :1,270,658.23
materials ‘ ' : :
; é : : ! -
Total i4,4‘31,085,264.05 ; 19,493,622.47 | 424,591,641.58 542,768,068.81 | 25.462,335.64 , 517,305,733.17

For details on the restrictions of inventories, refer to Note V (44) “Assets with
Restricted Ownership or Use Rights”

23} Depreciation provision for inventories



Item

Raw

materials

Development

products

Total

Opening

Balance

1 25,462,335.64

: 25,462,335.64

. Increase in the Current

3 Period

1

1 Amount

£ 1,147,371.04

10,084,754.02 |

i 11,232,125.06

[P,

Other

' Decrease in the Current Period

5

Carried
Forward

Written-off

3 Closing

Translation of

or . Foreign-currency

! Statements

. 36,540.93

17,164,297.30 ¢

" 17,164,297.30

© 36,540.93

P
H

Balance

©1,110,830.11

| 18,382,792.36

© 19,493,622.47

Depreciation provision was carried forward or written off in this period
because of the carrying forward of sale costs.

(3). No borrowing cost is capitalized in the closing balance of inventories.

6 Other current assets

Item

Tax on pre-~received house prices

VAT to be refunded

Total

Closing Balance

16,554,469.25
9,432,306.08

25,986,775.33

Opening Balance

18,707,392.40

10,822,104.77

29,529,497.17

Additional notes:

“VAT to be refunded” refers to the VAT to be refunded to the subsidiary

VGML.

7. Financial assets available for sale

(1 Financial assets available for sale

Item

Debt
instruments
available for
sale

Equity
instruments
available for
sale
Including:

measured at

160,234,938.5 ' 54,189.218.5 |
'6,045,719.99  64,569,682.06

6

4

i6

Book
Balance

160,234,938.5 154,189,218.5

Closing Balance
’ Impairment '

Provision

7

L

7

i

+ Book Value : Book Balance :

Opening Balance
{  Impairment

Provision

P
P

3

;

Book Value

}5],697,454.57 12,872,227.49

| '
£6,045,719.99  64,569,682.06 :51,697,454.57 [12,872,227.49




Closing Balance ' Opening Balance

ltem Book Impairment

f

Impairment
P . Book Value
Provision

[P

| Balance Provision Book Value Book Balance j
fair value _T‘ i !
Measured at I ] ‘
cost o ; : | :

60,234,938.5 § 54,189,218.5
.6 17

(2).  Closing available-for-sale financial assets measured at fair value

: -t 1 - i

: | :
Total ;6,045,719.99 64,569,682.006 551,697,454.57 §12,872,227.49

: Equity
i Instruments | Debt Instruments
Classification : : ! Total
Available for . Available for Sale
N ) 7 Sale
Cost of equity instrument/amortized cost of -
63,368,522.15 ‘ . 63,368,522 15
debt ) ) ‘ ) : ‘ : )
Fair value ) ] : 6,045.719.99 ) 6.,045,719.99
Accumulated amount of changes in fair value : 5
. -3,133,583.59 *-3,133,583.59
recorded into other comprehensive income ' .
Impairment provision made 1 54,189,218.57 54,189,218.57

(3).  Changes in impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Classification Equity Inst . Debt Inst .

( uity Instrum :
available-for-sale  financial d .y Hments : e. fstruments Total

' Available for Sale | Available for Sale
assets :
Opening balance of :
. . . : 51,697.454.57 ' 51,697,454.57
impairment provision .
Amount accrued in this | -

2,491,764.00 : 3 2,491,764.00

pericd

Including: difference from ; ,
translation of | 2,491,764.00 : 2,491,764.00
foreign-currency statements |

Decrease in this period

Including: Amount carried
forward for rise of fair value i
Closing balance of :

o s | 54,189,218.57 ! ' 54,189,218.57
impairment provision |
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Additional notes:

According to the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by and between the
subsidiaries VGML and Marvel Dragon, as the shareholder of Goldbasin
Mining (Fiji) pte Limited, Marvel Dragon shall bear all the costs and expenses
incurred on the “mining” and “exploration” during the “exploration period”
until the completion date or the early termination of this Agreement,
whichever occurs earlier. As of December 31, 2018, Goldbasin Mining (Fiji)
pte Limited was still in the exploration period, and hence the investment
gains/losses were not recognized in this period.

9 Investment property

(1).  Investment property measured at cost

Item o Houses and Buildings Total
l.NOri_ginal book value ) ) ) o
(1) Opening balance 196,222,252 48 . 196,222,252.48
(2) Increase in this period : ) 57,440,369.62 ' 57,440,369.62 )
—Purchase :
—Transferred from -
. . 12,905,533.21 12,905,533.21
"1nvept01n'les ) ) )
—Transferred from '
44,534 836.41 . 44 534 836 .41

_ properties for paying debt
(3) Decrease in this period

—Disposal ; ) : ) )
{4) Closing balance ; 253,662.622.10 253,662,622.10
2. Accumulated depreciation | o
and accumulated amortization o o ) B o
(1) Opening Balance o 32,944,725.30 3 32,944,725.30
(2) Increase in this period . 5,820,881.75 . 15,820,881.75
—Accrual or

o g 5,820,881.75 ! 5,820,881.75
amortization ; ]

_(3) Decrease in this period
—Disposal '

_(4) Closing Balance 38,765,607.05 ‘ ~ 38,765,607.05
3. Impairment provision '
(1) Opening balance 5
_(2) Increase in this period

—Accrual O

(3) Decrease in this period i
—Disposal . o
(4) Closing Balance !

4. Book value




Item : Houses and Buildings ! Total )

(1) Closing beok value : 214,897,015.05 | 214,897,015.05

(2) Opening book value i 163,277,527.18 | 163,277,527.18
Additional notes:
(1) On August 9, 2018, the court made a judgment that Shandong Shengji
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Shengji Investment™), guarantor for Qilu
Real Estate Co., Ltd., shall transfer the houses at #1-#10, No. 10, Shantou
Road, Wendeng District, Weihai City, which were valued RMB 43,207,587.00
to the Company. Along with the tax payable RMB 1,327,249 .41 for transfer of
ownership, totaling RMB 44,534,836.41 were taken as investment property.
(2) Inventories valued 12,905,533.21 were transferred into investment
property, for which the ownership certificate has not been obtained.
(3) Details on mortgage over the investment properties at the end of the
period:

Item ¢ Original Book Value . Accumulated Depreciation Book Value

Ho d . 37,984,048 34 '

ouses 19622225248 A . 158,238,204.14

buildings ;

Total ' 196,222,252 48 37.984,048.34 158.238,204.14

10. Fixed Assets

(1).  Fixed assets and disposal

Iterm Closing Balance E Opening Balance

Fixed assets 566,676,700.27 ’ 566,067,114.89

Total

Fixed assets disposal

566,676,700.27 7 566;067,] 14.89
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11 Construction in process

(1).  Construction in process and project materials

1 v
Item ‘ Closing Balance ] Opening Balance

Construction in process 35,641,662.53 . 13,255,249.03

Project materials

Total | 35,641,662.53 13,255,249.03

(2).  Breakdown of construction in process

Clesing Balance ; Opening Balance
ltem : Impairment ! ; Impairment !
Book Balance : " Book Value Book Balance i  Book Value
. Provision * Provision
Mine roads : ; , ‘
and tailing  1,416,128.00 . ! 1,416,128.00 1,416,128.00 1,416,128.00
ponds : , ‘
Expansion and ’
renovation of 4.387.634.63 ' 4387.634.63  6,573.362.86 6,573,362.86
tailing dam ; ’ :
Machinery and ! , j ' i
equipment not  29.610,953.40 :29,610,953.40  5,038.811.67 © 5,038.811.67
installed yet - . . 5 '
Other " 226,946.50 22694650 © 226,946.50 " 226,946.50
Total 35,641,662.53 © 35,641,662.53 : 13,255,249.03 | 13,255,249.03
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12.  Intangible assets

(1).  Details of intangible assets

o Ttem ‘r Mining Rights Exploratior} Rights Others ! - Total
1. Original book | ; ' ;
value L : :
(n Opening . ' ‘ ‘
b 309,987,964.57 1 127,229,446.43 5,041,139.34 " 442,258,550.34
balance ' ' :
(2) Increase in this ‘

. 113,207.54 : 532,182.26 645,389.80
period Lo i j . ; e
—Acquirement . 11320754 532,18226 | 64538980
(3) Decreasc in this | ; 1 :

. -1,949.809.22 : - -23,113.22 - -1,972,922.44
period ‘ . . , K .
—Disposal o 40,000.00 5 O 40,000.00
—Translation of |
foreign-cuttency -1,989,809.22 N ALYy} L 201292244
statements “ i i ’ - ) J B ]

(4) Closing balance | 312,050,981.33 | 12722944643 559643482 444,876,862.58
2. Accumulated ° ' : :
amortization .
%)) Opening | :

6993931477 | 2,485.407.05 72,424,721 82
balance o ;
(2) Increase in this l :

. 17,086,073.76 . 480,719.93 17,566,793.69
period o N ) ) . o B
—Acorual | 1708607376 | S aB071993  t 17,566,793.69
(3) Decrease in this : i

. : -606,211.49 : ' -18,433.56 ' -624,645 05
period : : L ; o
—Disposal ‘ 17 ]
—Translation  of : : :
forcign-currency  -606,211.49 © 1843356 . -624,645.05
statements . o N ) [ ) o
(jlr)ﬂCIosing’B:alanqe ’ 87,631.600."02 ) _2,984,560.54 ) 90_,616,!60.56
3. Impairment :
prov_is;o_n . :

(1) Opening : : ‘
: 79.514,811.22 39,340,896.19 i 791,923.87 ! 119,647,631.28
Balance ' ] :

{(2) Increase in this

. 9.782.241.97 9.782.241.97

period : | i

- ] ? - | ; - o -
~—Accrual ! Lo978224197 b 978224197
—Others l ! i

(3) Decrease in this ' !

period . . |




Cltem
—Disposal
—Others
(i[ln(Jlosiajgnl:[alance
4 Book velue
(I) Closing bock
value
(2} Opening book;‘r

value

Mining Rights

79,514.811.22

144,904,570.09

160,533.838.58

. Exploration Rights

[N

49.123,138.16

78,106,308.27

47.888.550.24

_ Others

791,923.87

1,819,950.41

1,763,808.42

+
|
i
i

) Total

129.429,873.25

224,830,828.77

250,186,197 24

Additional notes:

(1) The amount of amortization in this period is RMB 17,566,793.69.

(2) In the current period, the impairment of exploration rights was RMB
9,782,241.97, which was accrued because the estimated recoverable amount of
the prospecting right and exploration right of the subsidiary Sichuan Pingwu
over the Shilonggou Gold Mine was lower than the carrying valuc as the area
is overlapped with the core area of Giant Panda National Park and the core

area of Xuebaoding National Nature Reserve.,

13 Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
(1).  Deferred income tax assets not set off’
: 4 Closing Balance ) _ Opening Balance

Deductible ' Deductible

Item Deferred income . | Deferred income
temporary : temporary

tax assets : tax assets

differences : di_ﬂ”erer]qe§ )

Income tax effects on

_bad c!ebt provision

Income tax effects on

mventories

depreciation provision

1

Income tax effects on

pre-received amount
Income tax effects on
estimated liabilities
Deductible loss

Income tax effects on
taxes and surcharges

Total

[P

53,976,436.09
18,382,792.36

26,592,481.96

7.327,200.00
42,258,687.29
35,842,069.94

184,379,667.64

13,494,109.02

4,595,698.09

6,648,120.49

1,831,800.00
10,564,671.82
8,960,517.49

46,094,916.91

PRV

$5,127,511.10
25,462,335.64

30,936,540.54

6,502,800.00
30,286.575.33
36,236,481.21

184,552,243.82

13,781,877.78
6,365,583.91

7,734,135.13

1,625,700.00
7.571,643.83
9,059,120.30

46,138,060.95




@)

(3).

(4).

Non-deducted income tax liabilities

Item

Rent-free lease

i
I
:

| 13,497,006.84 | 3374,251.71

C]psing B_qlancei

| Opening Balance

. Taxable ! Deferred . Taxable
: temporary income tax temporary
differences | liabilities | differences

Income tax credits |

i 844,770.84

. Deferred
income  tax

i
¥
1
|
i
i

| tiabilities

14,231,565.49 | 3,557,891.37

from the ' 3,379,083.37 ‘K 8,491,452.98 - 2,122,863.25
withholding tax | I Y S I
Total L 16,876,090.21 ' 421902255 , 22,723,018.47 f 5,680,754.62

Breakdown of unrecognized deferred income tax assets

Item

Deductible temporary differences

Deductible loss

Bad debt provi;ion

Depreciation provision for inventories

Impairment provision for intangible assets

Impairment provision for fixed assets

Estimated liabilities
Interest payable

Total

i

{
|

Closing Balance

367,726,890.40
340.697.114.46

1,110,830.11

129,429,873.25

270,490.78
62,757,952.06
132,613.61

902,125,764.67

-

Opening Balance

300,051,905.29

488,341.504.27
301.919.93
22.116,465.75

132,613.61

1,020,592,040.13

Due dates of deductible loss of unrecognized deferred income tax assets:

Year
2018
2019 ’
:2020
2021
2022
2023

Total

Closing Balance

Foon

[ —

14,903,529 69
| 43,234.983.26
32,025,249.70
126,477,935.58
91,085,192.17

367,726,890.40

Opening Balance

H
i
|
i

113,410,207.06
74,903,529.69
43 .234,983.26
32,025,249.70

126,477,935.58

390,051,905.29

Remarks

[OR—




14

15

(1.

16

().

1)

Other non-current assets

[tem
Advance payment for equipment

Total

Closing Balance |

2,200,283.02

i -

2200283.02

Opening Balance
3,524,519.32

3,524,519.32

Short-term borrowing

Breakdown

item

(_;‘uarar;teed b;>r-rowing

Credit borrowing
Mortage+guaranteed borrowing

Total

i Closing Balance
250,000,000.00

1139474272

 94.000,000.00

355,394,742.72

£ 300,000,000.00

Opening Balance
12,626.947.78
95,000,000.00

407,626,947.78

Notes for classification of short-term borrowings:

(1) The guaranteed borrowing is guaranteed by Shandong Xinchao Energy Co.,

Ltd. by Shares;

(2) The credit borrowing is borrowed by the subsidiary VGML from the bank

ANZ;

(3} The Company borrowed RMB 94 million from Jinan Rural Commercial
Bank, for which the subsidiary Zibo Real Estate provided credit guarantee and
house mortgage. The restrictions are detailed in Note V (44) “Assets with the
Restricted Ownership or Use Rights”.

Notes payable and accounts payable

Item
Notes payable
Accounts payable

Total

T
]

Closing Balance

£
i

259,049.408.25

259,049,408 25

Opening Balance

212,021,678.50

212,021,678.50

Accounts payable

Breakdown:

[tem

Project payment

Closing Balance

131,623,494.43

Opening Balance

132,036,374.04




2)

17

(1).

(2).

Item ! Closing Balance

Equipment payment 1 17,265,252.45
Materialsipayment % 167,379,893.63
Other ' L 21T
Total L 259,049,408.25

JEP U S —

Opening Balance

[1,365,417.39
' 66.286,571.59
2.333,315.48

212.021,678.50

Key accounts payable with the account age exceeding one year:

Reasons for Not

Item Closing Balance . Repaying or Carrying
) ; Forward
Zibo  Branch of  Sutong ’ Not reached the
} . , 31,045,226.76 ;
Construction Corporation : : settlement date yet
Shandong Baocheng Real Estate | Not reached the
13,237,489.48
Co., Ltd. seftiement date yet
Shandong Xincheng Construction : .
: . 12,244, 538.72 . Pending litigation
Corporation E
Shandong Gaoyang Construction ! Not reached the
6,057,924.83 ;
Co., Lid. settlement date yet
Total L 62,585,179.79
Advance receipts
Breakdown
Item . Closing Balance Opening Balance
House price ' 165,838,670.37 . 193,949,506.11
Rent received . 4,309,645.57 : 2,777.856.76
Total £ 170,148,315.94 . 196,727,362.87
Important advance receipts with the account age over one year
; . Reasons  for  Not
Item . Closing Balance ' Repaying or

ﬁzo Jingyuan Real Estate Co., - 40,216,130.00

Zibo Central Hospital

'
T
i
]
i

Carrying Over

' Not yet delivered

6,000,000.00 | Not yet delivered




, 5 Reasons for Not
Item i Closing Balance | Repaying or
| Carrying Over
Zibo I?ranch Of. Sutong - 4,800,000.00 Not yet delivered
Construction Corporation ;
Total | 51,016,130.00
(3).  Advance receipts by project
_Project Name . Ciosing Balance ~ Opening Balance
Receipts from | ;E
pre-sale of houses of ‘ |
Zhongrun OCT 99,658.10 ; 199,658.10
phase 1 . . ’
Receipts from ' 1
pre-sale of houses of
Zhongrun ocT
phase 2 ) [
Receipts from
pre-salc of houses of 109,905.00 : 8.214,376.00
Zhongrun OCT . T ( e
phase 3 )
Receipts from
pre-sale of houses of .
: 31,469.00 5 131,469.00
Zhongrun OCT ; :
“phase 4 o )
Receipts from :
pre-sale of houses of I
Zhongrun OCT 5
s o 1
Receipts from ; ;
pre-sale of houses of
165,597,638.27 ' 185,404,003.01
Zhongrun oCcT k
phase 6 ) ’ : ) o
Rent prepaid 4,309,645.57 P ~2,777,856.76
Total ; 170,148,315.94 , 196,727,362.87
18.  Payroll payable
(1). Breakdown
- Opening - Increase in This  Decrease in . Franstation Of} Closing
Item ! : Foreign-currency

. Balance ! Period ' This Period | Balance
: | Statements :




Item
Balance

f

Short-term
benefits

Post-employment |
benefits — defined
contribution plan
Termination
benefits

Other benefits due

within one year

Total | 15,967,986.54

Opening

| 14,408,525.83

'1,559,462.71

|
" Period

" 907,990.91

J——

442,492.04

——

| 149,514,394.48

150,864,877.43

This Period

145,769,972.54

1,013,139.32

" 442,492.04

¢ Increase in This | Decrease in

147,225,603.90

[P

Translation of ' .
: Closing

Foreign-currency |
i Balance
Statements !

1 -
i

-134,473.07 18,287.418.8

-23,175.84 | 1,477,490.14

1 -157,648.91

4

! 19,764,908.98

(2).  Short-term benefits

Opening
item
Batance

(1) Salary, ;

bonus,

allowance j 3.625,087.36
and subsidy_
e ,
Employee ' 4,205.24
{)cneﬁts o

(3)  Social :

insurance ! 1,943,767.35
expenses
Including:
medical

: 66.948.39

insurance

expenses

e

Work injury
1,876.818.96

insurance

expenses
Maternity
insurance
expenses

(4) Housing J

| 687.837.79
provident A

Increase in This

, Period

i 138,513,963.94

192,685.98

2,564,605.43

334,630.8%

2,185.305.16

‘ 44,669.38

587.849.23

© 184,158.98

Period

136,335,390.14

' 2,235,041.25

' 334.630.89

i 1.855,740.98

44,669.38

587.849.23

. _+ Translation af
Decrease in This ¢

* Foreign-currency

Closing

Balance
S!atements . |

' 56,750.56 | 5.860,411.72

e

S 12,732.24

-27,911.52 2,301,243.05

66,948.39

-27,911.52 2,234,294.66

| 687.837.79




i Opening
Item ! !
i Balance i Period
fund o
(5) Labor
unjon ’

expenditure

and | 5,005,320.83  : 969,710.62

employee
education
expenses j

(6) Paid i

short-term . 3,142,305.26 | 6,685,579.28

absence
7
Short-term
profit

sharing plan

Total ! 14,408,523.83 ' 149,514,394 48

Increase in This ,

1

Decrease in This :

Period

. 22,087.00

6,405,445.94

145,769,972.54

r

Translation of | )
| Closing

Foreign-currency

| Statements

1

©-3,411.38

; -46,399.61

" -134,473.07

H
P
|
i
1
f
t
i
i
P
t
1
i
H

v
i

f
'

Balance

b 5,956,355.83

3,468,338.21

18,287,418.84

(3).  Breakdown of defined contribution plan

Opening E
Hem ;
Balance

Basic pension
. " 284,750.66
insurance

Unemployment
. 48,025.25
insurance

Corporate anauity
H b
.} i

Other b 1.226,686.80

Total " 1,559.462.71

Inecrease in

This Period

844.963.19

59,721.72

3.306.00

907,990.91

P

Decrease in

This Period
844.963.19

59,721.72

3,306.00
105.148.41

1,013,139.32

Translation of
Foreign-currency

Statements

-23,175.84

-23,175.84

L 1.144,714.23

£

Closing

Balance

284,750.66

48,025.25

1,477,490.14

Additional notes:

“Other” refers to the provident fund accrued by VGML,

19 Tax payable

Category
Individual income tax
Property tax

Closing Balance
1,154,241.57
470,652.27

. Opening Balance
512,444.84
318,107.03




Category o ) Closing Balance Opening Balance
Land use tax o 402,242.80 355,486.04
_Corporate income tax 202,141.12 ’; 202,141,12
Stamp duty 9,048.90 b 881480
var i 191660439
Urban maintenance and construction ' i
J 5 150,296.85
tax : i S .
_Education surcharges ‘ , 107,354.90
Water conservancy construction fund © . 687685
Oter . 36415964 | _ 811,606.19
Total " 2,602,486.30 1‘ 4,389,733.01
20 Other payables
ltem Closing Balance Opening Balance
Interest payable L 69,572,911.45 50,356,469.67
Dividend payable
Other 416,494,369.64 367,870,475.96
Total [ 486,067,281.09 418,226,945.63
(1).  Interest payable
Item : Cleosing Balance Opening Balance
Interest on long-term borrowings
with interest repaid by installment -
- . .o 83,064.14
and principal repaid on maturity
date
Interest payable on bank loan ‘ 1,136,705.97 682,527.08
Interest payable for loan issuedi
e : 68,436,205.48 49,590,878.45
by non-financial institutions
Total : 69,572,911.45 50,356,469.67
(2).  Other payable
1y} By nature
Item E Closing Balance Opening Balance
Payables in current account j 137,257,531.97 71,937,564.58

Borrowing from  non-financial . 210,022,301.37

225,000,000.00




[tem
institutions

Amounts received by developer§
on behalf

Earnest money for purchase of

houses
Tax to be settled

Others

Closing Balance

15,357,159.34

4,358,415.00

47.183.178.14

VY VPV

Opening Balance

16,183,774.46

5,552,411.24

45,074, 126.69

4,122,598.99

2,315,783.3i j
“Total . 416,494.369.64 367.870.475.96
2) Other important payables with the account age of over one year
Hom Closing Balance Reason for failure to pay
or carry over
Cui Wéi 140,0(-)0,00(-):00“" -Personal Borrowiﬁg

Shandong Bona Investment Co.,
Ltd. i

Ningbo Dingliang Huitong Equity
Investment Centre
Tibet Sinolink Wealth Investment |
Management Co., Lid.

Liu Jiaging

39,166,533.92

25,000,000.00

17,500,000.00

17,000,000.00

Borrowing from
shareholders of

subsidiaries

Borrowing from other
enterprises

Borrowing from other
enterprises

Persénal bc;r;ovw;fing
Total L 238,666,533.92 - )
21 Non-current liabilities due witilin one year
Item

Long-term borrowing due within

one year

Bonds payable due within one -

year

Long-term payables due within

one year

Total

Closing Balance

10,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

Opening Balance

125,445,097.27

125,445,097.27

22 Long-term borrowing

Classification:



Item ) Closing Balance - Opening Balance
Pledged borrowing L 40,000,000.00 |
Total i 40,000,000.00 |

Additional notes:

(1) The Company borrowed RMB 50 million from Zibo Branch of Weihai
Commercial Bank with the term starting from November 30, 2018 to
November 30, 2023 and the annual interest rate of 10.00%.

(2) The Company shall repay RMB 10 million by December 20, 2019, for
which the Company provides accounts receivables pledge and property
mortgage. Refer to Note V (44) “Assets with the Restricted Ownership or Use
Rights” for details,

23 Long-term payroll payable
{1).  Breakdown

Item N ’ Closing Balance : Opening Balance
1. Net liabilities for -
post-employment benefits- |

defined benefit plan

2. Termination !)ﬂl:l_eﬁts_ ) L S ) o
3. Other long-term benefits . 868,960.30 B 1,022,272.96
Total : 868,960.30 1,022,272.96

24 Estimated liahilities

v

Item , Closing Balance i Opening Balance Reasons
Estimated .
liquidated " 37,175,013.70 1 17,269,265.75
damages .
Estimated ' i
liabilities i ! . Estimated mine
. 21,560,138.36 ' 53,166,431.01 ; )

related to mine ; : : repair costs
reclamation o - i o i

. ’ . ' Overdue loan
Estimated loss  11,350,000.00 ' 11,350,000.00 ‘

o _ © guarantee loss

Total ' 70,085,152.06 ' 81,785,696.76

Additional notes:

(1) The estimated liquidated damages loss refers to the liquidated damages
resulting from the Company’s failure to repay the borrowings to Cui Wei, Liu
Jiaging and others in accordance with the contract.

(2) The estimated liabilities related to mine land reclamation refer to the
expenses for mine reclamation as estimated by VGML.



25 Share capital

i * Increase {+)/decrease (—) in this period

. Opening { Issue { Conversion | ¢ Closing
Item H i ! Bonus ) ! :
* Balance | of new | from ¢ Others ; Subtotal | Balance
: ¢ share ! ! i
, shares . | reserves ! ;
Total : ’ ! '
capital  929,017.761.00 | ' 929,017,761.00
share ! : ';
26 Capital reserve
: . ’ v ] v : .
i i Opening _Increase in 1 Decrease  in  Closing
€in i : :
| Balance . Balance

-2

Capital premium  51,259,534.18 °

Total ©51,259,534.18

This Period

This Period

. 51,259.534.18

51.259.534.18
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28 Special reserve

ltern Opening Increase in this | Decrease in i Closing
Balance i period i this period Balance
Work safety ‘ { — ;
13,921.38 : 13,921.38
expenses , : J
Total 13,921.38 " : 13,921.38
29 Surplus reserve
Ite : Opening Increase in this Decrease in Closing
m H ! : |
Balance : period | this period ' Balance
Statut ? N
atutory | 77,808.985.76 : | 77,898,985.76
surplus reserve | ; ;
Total 77,898,985.76 : . 77,898,985.76

30 Undistributed profit

ltem ' This period ¢ Last period
Undistributed profit at the end of the 5
. . . -44,394,785.25 404,738,995.48
previous year before adjustment ! .
Undistributed profits at the beginning of .
the year affer adjustment (increase +,
decrease -)
Undistributed profits at the beginning of :
, . -44,394,785.25  404,738,995.48
the year after adjustment : ;
. . S
Plus: net profit attributable to the owner :
of the parent company in the current  42,189,840.94 | -449,133,780.73
peried : ;
LLess: statutory surplus reserve accrued
Discretionary surplus reserve accrued
General risk provision accrued ;
Ordinary share dividend payable : ,
Ordinary share dividend transferred to '’ ‘F
share capital : !
Closing undistributed profit . -2,204,944 .31 i -44,394,785.25

31 Operating income and operating expenses



' This Period

ftem -
| Income

Main !

. - 486,021,070.02
business |
Other

. 1 10,439,161.62
businesses
Total | 496,460,231.64

i Last Period

q

i Expenses [ Income

i T
461,373,289.49

. 5,473,024.07
; i

| 466,846,313.56

- 769,082,244 46

-
- Expenses

|
'

L 10427,104.94  : 5,447.239.91
: I

© 758,655,139.52 . 682,687,546.96

| 688,134,786.87

Taxes and surcharges

Item
Busi;less tax
Ur-l;an 7 me-xintehance
construction tax
- Land appreciation tax
Prope@ taxr '
Stamp duty

Education surcharge

This Period

+ i

4,651,089.86
530,866.96

' 2,584,901.43
1,445,096.75

[

73,913.29
280,505.13

Water conservancy construction

fund
Gold tax
Land use tax

Total

e

15,147.54

12,213,473.99
346,607.60
22,141,602.55

l Last Period
7,785,600.57
1,392,254 99
13,541,074.88
1,273,508.12

92.,694.00
782,766.60

52,215.20

P 377.880.42
36,468,099.68

“ 71"1,]770,104.579"0“ .

Sales expenses

Item

Repair expenses

Expenses for selling services

Labor costs

Office eﬁpenses
Travelling expet{seé
Enteﬁainment expe;lses
Other

Total

. This Period
5,493,787.50

' 2,527,853.02
" 596,039.47

©69,022.60

35,1447

| 5,325.00

12404323

" 8,851,215.29

_ Last Period

1 7.189.161.32
| 5.235.105.79
3,158,174.49
. 67,581.66
17,305.70

| 13,589.00
220,423.00

' 15,901,340.96




34

35

36

Management expenses

[tem

Labor cost

Depreciation and amortization

Agency expenses

Property management and water

and electricity expenses
Of’ﬁr;e exﬂpenses N
Turnover materials
l;eas;ng’expenseé

- ;Fravclling-é:’;penses
éhtertaim-'nent ex;)enses

Others

Total

| This Period

' 2109231881

726,125,534.51

. 10,812,268.51

- 7.032,081.50

' 3,845,284.62

13747224

3,728,195.56

' 1,416,538.83
:889,924.97 "
| 1,980,547.13

' 77.660.166.68

Last Period

S

18,805,132.10

: 26,640,213.65

i
)

| 12,304,137.51

i
§ -

i 8,019,418.84

|
i

. 8,587,508.62
1 104,111.59
 6,346,244.21
250933475
7,411,640.58
10,579,721.92

101,397,463.77

Financial expenses

Item
Interest expenses

Less: interest income

This Period

' 57,798,044.63

! 532.628.33

| 60.235.328.10

; Last Period

4,882,870.43

Exchange loss 126,261,552.64 31,236,053.65

Handling charges  S4419.15 3,189,84026

Other o 1 3,203.73

Total ?31,058,282.&1 “ | 89.781,555.31

Asset impairment loss

em { Amount Incurred in f Amount Incurred in
. This Period - Last Period

Bad debt loss ;-]48,797,625.50 | 199,821,375.06

Inventory depreciation loss

Intangible asset impairment loss

Total

11,232,125.06
' 9,782.241.97

 -127,783,258.47

25,462,335.64

0 79,514,811.22

. 304,798,521.92




37

38

39

40

Investment income

‘ Amount ; Amount
Item I Incurred in This | Incurred in Last
l Period ] Period
Income from long-term equity investment !
. P -641,729.10
calculated based on equity method
Total b -641,729.10

Income from asset disposal

Amount recognized as

4

Item ! ThisPeriod |  Last Period non-recurrent profit and loss of the
' current period

Disposal  of i [
119.559.24  -3,023.856.62 ; 119,559.24

f
|

fixed assets

Total 119,559.24 —3,023,875W6.6£ h 119,559.24
Non-operating income
: Amount
. recognized as
Item 5 This Period Last Period non-recurrent
' ' . profit and loss of
i the current period
Gains from debt '
restructuring 1 g
H
. - - 3
Donation received
Reversal of reclamation ! :
. 34,048,412.38 . » 34,048,412.38
expenses \ f ;
Other L 47709186 ' 382,50053 | 477,091.86
Total J 34,525,504.24 ! 382,500.53 34,525,504.24

Additional notes:

“Reversal of reclamation expenses” refers to the costs for mine reclamation
adjusted by the subsidiary VGM L due to environmental changes.

Non-operating expenses



Amount recognized as

Item . This Period | LastPeriod : non-recurrent profit and
loss of the current period

et e

Loss in debt .
restructuring

e b o

Donation made | 504,800.00 ' 153,600.00 | 504,800.00

b

Non-recurrent loss

Inventory loss

[T

Loss from damage and | i :
scrapping of non-current | 1,418,469.97 . 1,418,469.97
assets ; :

Liquidated damages for:?
borrowing from |
non-financial institutions 21,162.318.87 18,688,450.49 .

21,162,318.87

Other ©167,596.00 | 61523157 167,596.00
Total 123,253,184.84 ' 19457,28226 | 2353,184.84
41 Income tax expenses

(1).  Breakdown

Item ‘ This Period ; Last Period

Current income tax

Deferred income tax

-y

L1418,588.03 | -14,082,127.66
. -1418,58803 | -14,082,127.66

1 £

Total

(2).  Adjustment of accounting profit and deferred income tax expenses

Item : This Pericd
Total profit 1 28,436,058.76
B o 1
Income tax expense calculated at statutory tax rate ' 7,109,014.69

Effects due to different tax rates applicable to subsidiaries 2,114,903 .69
Effects due to adjustment on income tax of previous periods

Effects of non-taxable income

Effects of non-deductibie costs, expenses and losses ! 11,837,956 .46




Item

Effects due to using deductible losses of

deferred income tax assets of previous periods

unrecognized

F
i
|
;

Effects due to deductible temporary difference or deductible |

losses of unrecognized deferred income tax assets of the

current period

Income tax expenses

This Period

-47,867,224.36

29,616,568.87

-1,418,588.03

Last Period

382,500.53

702,92025
11,164,901.68

29,624,854.65

41,875,177.11

Last Period

45,309,362.19

$.407.608.85
218801651

317801144
14 678.54

33,189,665.97

92,287,343.50

42 Items in cash flow statements
(I).  Other cash received related to operating activities
Item o This Period
-Nor;-Operating’ income 4'77,09 1 .8-6
Interest income 532,628.33
Other accoun-t current i 99,4675,839.”85
Other moneéary funds with the use ‘. _ -
restricted . 31,393,653.11
Total 13186921315
(2).  Other cash paid related to operating activities
Item This Period
-Mz;r;agement e;penses - ! ]3,776,85(5. 14
Sales expe’:nseks | _282,3 7420
Non-operaiing— expenses 772,1 56.06
Finaﬁcial f‘:xpenlses - 1,106,211.31
Other monetary funds with the use |
restricted i 1,132,540.07
Other account current 21,575,001 .94
Total 1 38.645.133.66
(3).  Other cash received related to investment activities

Item

This Period

Earnest money received from Ningbo , 44 000.000.00

Huaxin Xincheng Investment

Last Period

. 5,000,000.00




Item i This Period 5 Last Period

Management  Partnership  (Limited |
partnership) i !

Borrowing recovered from PESI : 7 : 80,000,000.00

Wang Chong (amount received from |
Wang Chong, sharcholder of Tengmu . 45,000,000.00 :
Network, for transfer of shares)

Total | 90,000,000.00 | 85,000,000.00

¢
J S

(4).  Other cash paid related to investment activities

Item {  ThisPeriod = Last Period

Earnest money paid to Ningbe Huaxin ;
Xincheng Investment Management 50,000,060.00 .
Partnership (Limited partnership)

Wang Chong (amount paid to Wang ,
Chong, shareholder of  Tengmu 45,000,000.00
Network, for transfer of shares) ; ‘

Total | 95,000,000.00

(5).  Other cash received related to financing activities

Item This Period Last Period
Letter of credit deposit 538,125.00
Borrowings from non-financial
. 18,522,301.37
institutions ' !
Total o 18,522,30137 ! 538,125.00

(6).  Other paid cash related to financing activities

Item This Period Last Period
Borrowing to non-i‘inancial institutions- ‘ 28,560,000.00 - ' 80,000,000.00
Total " 2850000000 | 80,000,000.00
43 Supplementary information to cashl flow statement

(1).  Supplementary information to cash flow statement



Supplementary information i This Period ' Last Period

1. Net profit adjusted to cash flows from |
operating actjvities : j

1
H

Net profit 29,854,646.79 © -475,416,034.74

Plus: Provision for asset impairment i -127,783,258.47 5 304,798,521.92

Depreciation of fixed assets 99,184,290.97 - 88,410,760.40

Amaortization of intangible assets . 17,566,793.69  19,288,768.68
Amortization of long-term deferred expenses
Loss from disposal of fixed assets, intangible ;
assets and other long-term assets (“-” for’  -119,559.24 ©3,023,856.62
gains) : !
Loss from scrapping of fixed assets (“-” for '
. 1,418,469.97 -
gains) I !
Loss from changes in fair value (**-” for gains)
Financial expenses (**-” for gains) 57,798,044.63 | 91,566,579.87
Investment loss (- for gains) : 641,729.10
Decrease in deferred income tax assets (“-” for |
. , 43,144.04 -15,133,043.56
gains) |
Increase in deferred income tax liabilities (“~’; :
-1,461,732.07 . 1,050,915.90
for decrease) :
Decrease of inventories (“-” for increase) i 98,682,804.76 266,409,263.96
Decrease of operating receivables (“-” for
. i 90,097,421.09  -6,423,479.13
increase) :
- . -+
I f ti abl *-> for
nerease of - operating - payables - ( or . 22.220,170.22 1 -166,854,448.22
decrease) :
Other
Net cash flow from operating activities , 288.142,965.48 . 110.721,661.70

2. Important investment and financing °
activities involving no cash receipts and '’ |
payments '

Debt converted to capital ' 5




Supplementary information This Peried

Convertible corporate bonds due within one !

year !

+
|

Fixed assets _acquired und;r ﬁnance lease
3. N;’,t cﬁanges m -cash and C&Si‘l equivaients
, Ci(;sing balance of cash ' B to41 ,152,75;).31
Less: -O-;-J'ening balance of cash J 64,;’)59,655.22
7Plus:“ Closing t;alance of cash equivalegts —

Less: Opéning ba]énce of cash e;quivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -23,506,895.91

Last Period

64,659,655.22

52,973,557.61

11,684,097.61

(2). Composition of cash and cash equivalents

Item ! Closing Balance
I Cash “ 7  41,152,75931
Including; cash on hold 3710179
Cash in bank readily available for payment | 41,115.631.52

Other monetary funds readily avaiiable for
payment ‘

Deposits with central bank readily available ‘

for payment

bepoﬂsits and other financial institutions
I;oané frorﬁr other financial institutiéns

- li. Cash eql;{valents

Including: Bond investment due within 3
months ‘
1. Closing balance of cash and cash :

. P 41,152,759.31
equivalents.
Including: Cash and cash equivalents of |
which the use by the parent company and |

group subsidiaries is restricted

: Opening Balance

i

64,659,655.22
24,720.68

64,634,934.54

64,659.,655.22

44 Assets with ownership or use right restricted



'}
i

Closing Book

Item | ‘ Reasons for Restriction
| Value |
[ } Fixed deposits used by VGML for
Monetary funds £ 4,100,262.93 ' environmental protection, work injury
; compensation and other purposes.
3 1,258,423.40 | Environmental governance deposit

Monetary funds
Monetary funds ¢ 2,645,698.94 | Mortgage deposit

Frozen

Monetary funds i 1,132,540.07 3

Accounts recéivable 13,497.006.84 + Pledge on iaonovx;ings

I—nve;ltories 2,884,543.02 House attached

I-n\-rc-estment ;;rOperty 158,238,204.14 Mortgage on borrowings
- '-Total ‘ 183,756,679.34 l

45 Foreign-currency monetary items
(1).  Foreign-currency monetary items
; Exchange .
ltem Closing Balance Rate for Closing Balance
: ‘ Translation Converted to RMB

Money funds L a0%0s1402
-l-r;(‘;luding: Fiji Dollar ' 2,688,147.88 o 3. 19996— 8,60 l—,565.69 o
HKD LSSTS7627 1 087620 O sssses3n
Accounts receivable 133414339
Including: Fiji-Doila_r- S -41-6,925.02 a : - 3.1-9996- ' i,33—4,14-13.-3-9“
bther receivables e ~ ~ r i ;550,579,562.06- —
Including: Fiji Dollar ~ 424,119.42 310996 | 145716518
HKD | 18990742 087620 . 16639638
USD ' 80,000,000.00 - 6.86320 N 549,056,000.00
Accounts payable T 125763,142.57
Including; Fiji Dollar 3930147332 319996  125.763,142.57
Other payables I : 5,071,427.34

Including: GBP 22,206.35 8.67620 192,666.73




VI.

VIIL.

(1)

Exchange .
£ Closing Balance

Item - Closing Balance | Rate for |
: | . {  Converted to RMB
| Translation
Fiji Dollar ' 1,520,999.05 ¢ 3.19996 | 4,867,136.12
HKD 3,000.00 © 0.87620 . 2,628.60
Real | 511467 | 175884 | 8,995.89

Overseas operating entities of the Company:

(1) Zhongrun International Mining Co., Ltd. (“Zhongrun International™),
whose principal place of business is Hong Kong, and the functional currency
is Hong Kong dollar;

(2) VGML, whose principal place of business is Fiji, and the functional
currency is Fiji Dollar;

(3) VGM Plc, whose principal place of business is England and the functional
currency is Pound.

(4) SaoCarlos Minaracao Ltd (*SCM™), whose principal place of business is
Brazil and the functional currency is Real.

These overseas subsidiaries determine Hong Kong Dollar, Fiji Dollar, British
Pound, and Real as their functional currency respectively according to the
currency used in the major economic environment in which they operate,
which have kept unchanged during the current period.

Changes in Scope of Consolidation

Two newly established subsidiaries are covered in the scope of consolidation
in this period, which are Shandong Qiansheng Economic and Trade Company
Limited and Shengyuan Jiye Investment Management (Hangzhou) Company
Limited.

Interests in Other Entities
In subsidiaries

Structure of the Corporation

P P ; ‘Shareholding .
Name of Principal Place Registered | . ‘Acquirement
L . iNature (%) f
Subsidiary of Business + Address ! P 1 Mode
i o : |Direct ‘lndlrectgr
Zibo Real: ' ' [Business
Estate  Co. Zibo, Zibo, , | ‘combination
‘ : ‘Real estate 100.00, )
Ltd. of'Shandong ‘Shandong : ‘under

Shandong : ‘common




e : . ! Shareholding | .
Name of Principal Place Registered , iAcquirement
: ‘Nature (%0) ;
R Mode
‘Direct :Indirect;

Subsidiary  of Business ¢ Address

Zhongrun ' ' . ‘ ! Econtrol
Growp 1 , T
Zhongrun : ( | |
Mining Jinan, Jinan, ‘Mining ; - i )

! a :100.00, iIncorporation
Development {Shandong Shandong linvestment ; :
Co., Ltd._

Shandong E

Qiansheng
Economic & Jinan, {Jinan,

; Commerce :100.00 E]nco orati
Trade iShandong Shandong | rporation

Company , : ‘
Limited _— o
Shengyuan , '
Jiye
Investment 1

'Hangzhou, ‘Hangzhou, Investment

Management |

: . v . . 40.00 ‘Incorporation
 Zhejiang Zhejiang ‘management ‘ ;

{Hangzhou)
Company

Limited ‘ ) ; o e
Zhongrun | ‘The : ;
International :Hong Kong, British ;Mining

Mining  Co. China Virgin ?investment ; ;
Ld. ~ Islands 7 - ; o
Inner . 5 , iBusiness
o Xilingol | R
Mongolia Xilingol . ‘ ! .combination
. ‘League, Mine 3 :
Huiyin League, Inner . 77525 ‘not under
L : . Inner exploration . :
Mining Co.,;Mongolia : ) ‘ ‘common
:Mongolia . : '
Lid. i : : ! fcontrol
- ; : ‘ ;
Chifeng : , : {Business
Runyin o Chifeng, . 5 ‘combination
) ‘Chifeng, Inner Mine
Mineral ‘ : ‘Inner . . 100.00 not under
] :Mongolia : . 'exploration ‘
Exploration :Mongolia | ‘ ‘common
Co., Ltd, ‘ ! , : .control
+ a : 1 -? ]r - -
Sichuan . . : : } ‘Business
Pingwu . v . } :combination
. ‘Pingwu, '‘Mianyang, - o \ ;
Zhongjin ) P Gold mining 176,00  not under
L ‘Sichuan :Sichuan ‘ :
Mining  Co., : : ; common
Lid. ' | : ] control
Tibet :Jomda County, Changdu, iProccssingandj '‘Business

71.20

Zhongjin ITibet ‘Tibet 'selling of! ‘combination




. E ‘Shareholding
Name of:Principal Place/Registered ‘

; | iAcquirement
. ! . : Nature (%) |
Subsidiary  lof Business | Address b i .. | Mode
! : ) 3Dlrect ilndu‘ectl} ‘
Mining Co.,} 1 ?minerals : : ‘not under
Lid., ] ] ‘commeon
’ ‘control
E Business
Vatukoula . \ \ binati
Gold Mines, , o i :com ination
pLC :England :England  Gold mining 79.52 ‘not under
i : : ! | ‘common
(England) ; X ‘
: o icontrol
' Business
icombination
e i England - - i
VGML (Fiji) Fiji .Gold mining 100.00 ‘not under
-and Wales | : ; '
| ; : i : ‘common
: ‘control

Additional notes:

The Company holds 40% shares of Shengyuan Jiye Investment Management
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Shengyuan Jiye™} which is covered in the scope of
consolidation of financial statements. Among the three directors of Shengyuan
Jiye, two are appointed by the Company, accounting for two-thirds of the total
directors, that is to say, the Company exercises control over the operation and
management of Shengyuan Jiye.

(2).  Important non-wholly owned subsidiaries

: . Dividends
" Profits or :
. declared to
- losses b . Balance of
, e =
* Shareholding | attributable to | minori
N ‘L are .o l!’lg | a 'l‘l u.a e to | distributed to . m. rity
Name of Subsidiary : of Minority ; minority " minorit i equity at end
: © minori
i Shareholders : shareholders Y . of the current
: shareholders .
for the current | ! period
’ . in the current !
period ) !
period
Inner Mengolia ! 3 :
Huiyin Mining Co., ; 24.75 -1,200,428.96 | 18,359,448.96
Lid. : ’
- . + - " - i-
Sichuan Pingwu !
Zhongjin Mining 24.00 " -4,615,920.81 -22,034,697.19
Co., Ltd. . ;

Tibet Zhongjin | 28-30 5781131 : 10,326,685.39




" Profits or

. losses b

| ; be
Shareholding , attributable to :

Name of Subsidiary ~ of Minority ' minority

i Shareholders

Mining Co., Ltd.

Vatukoula Gold :

3 12048
Mines PLC ;
Shengyuan Jiye '
Investment
Management " 60.00

(Hangzhou) Co.,
Ltd.

. shareholders

! period

©-6,461,033.07 |

, minority

: * shareholders
. for the current ,
: ¢ in the current j

| Dividends

d to!
declare ° | Balance of

L © minority
distributed to .

* equity at end
. of the current

| period

period

| 52,442,416.00

. 3,000,000.00
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(1.

Transactions resulting in changes of shares in the owner’s equity of
subsidiaries after which the Company still takes control of the subsidiaries

None
Interest in joint venture or associates

Financial information of non-important associates

: Closing Opening
' Balance/Amount in this A Balance/Amount in last
period : period

Associates !

Total investment by book value ’ 31,388,101.39

Totals  calculated based on

: -641,729.10
shareholding
—Net profit -641,729.10

—Other comprehensive income

—Total comprehensive income

VIIL. Risks Related to Financial Instruments

(0

The Company faces various financial risks during its operation, including
credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors takes full
responsibility for the determination of risk management objectives and
policies, and ultimate responsibility for the risk management cbjectives and
policies, provided that the Board of Directors has authorized the audit
department of the Company to design and implement proper procedures that
ensure the effective implementation of the risk management objectives and
policies. The Board of Directors reviews the effectiveness of the implemented
procedures and the rationality of the risk management objectives and policies
through monthly reports submitted by the audit supervisor. The internal
auditors of the Company also audit the risk management policies and
procedures and report the findings to the audit committee.

The overall risk management objective of the Company is to develop the risk
management policies that minimize the risks without compromising the
competitiveness and response capability of the company.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk resulting from the failure of one party to a
financial instrument to perform its obligations which causes financial losses to
the other party. The Company manages the credit risks by class by portfolio.



(2)

As of December 31, 2018, the maximum credit risk exposure that may cause
financial loss to the company mainly comes from the loss of financial assets it
may suffer from due to the failure of the other party to perform its obligations,
mainly including monetary funds, accounts receivable, and other receivables.
Their carrying values represent the highest credit risk the Company faces in
relation to financial risks.

The savings of the Company are mainly deposited in the commercial banks
with high credit rating, good asset conditions, and low credit risks. The
Company avoids the credit risk of commercial banks by closely monitoring the
changes in the account balances.

The Company has developed a comprehensive risk management and internal
control system for the accounts receivable. It strictly reviews the customer
credit and implements the accounts receivable collection procedures to reduce
the credit risk. In addition, it reviews the recovery of each individual
receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that sufficient bad debt
provision is made for the amounts that can not be recovered.

As of December 31, 2018, the balance of other receivables of the Company
was RMB 1,256,916,461.64, with the book value of RMB 879,294,455.24,
mainly including the receivables from disposal of shares in subsidiaries,
carnest money, the receivables for construction of iron ore and capital
occupation from PESI. For these receivables, the Company has adopted
security measures including but not limited to third-party guarantee and pledge
and regularly monitoring the credit records of the debtor. For debtors with bad
credit records, The Company will issue written notice of collection or lawyer’s
letter or take other measures to ensure that the overall credit risk of the
company is under control. However, due to the large sum of these receivables,
some of the debtors failed to fully implement the repayment obligations. The
Company still faces credit risk in other receivables to a certain extent.

Market risk

The market risk of financial instruments refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flow of financial instruments fluctuates due to changes in market
prices, including exchange risk, interest rate risk and other price risks.

1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The
interest rate risk faced by the Company mainly comes from short-term
borrowing from banks. At present, the policy of the Company is: fixed-rate
borrowings account for 100% of the external borrowings.

As of December 31, 2018, assuming other variables remain unchanged, if the



3)

interest rate for the borrowing calculated based on floating interest rate
increases or falls by one base point, the Company's net profit will decrease or
increase by RMB 572,333.73 (RMB 602,385.32 on December 31, 2017). The
management believes that 100 base points could reasonably reflect the
reasonable range of the possible changes in interest rate in the next year.

2}  Exchange rate risk

Exchange rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value of financial instruments
or future cash flow fluctuates due to changes in exchange rate. The Company
matches the foreign currency income with the foreign currency expenses as
much as possible to mitigate the exchange rate risk. In addition, the Company
may also sign forward foreign exchange contracts or currency swap contracts
to mitigate foreign exchange rate risk. In the current and previous periods, the
Company has not signed any forward foreign exchange contract or currency
swap contract.

The principal place of real estate business of the Company is China, and the
main business is settled in RMB. The gold mining and smelting business is
operated in Fijt and settled in Fiji dollars and US dollars. Therefore, the
market risk of foreign exchange changes suffered by the Company mainly
comes from the assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries and other
foreign-currency receivables of domestic entities. The related foreign currency
assets and foreign-currency liabilities include monetary funds, accounts
receivable, other receivables, accounts payable, and other payabies
denominated in foreign currency. For the converted RMB amounts of foreign
currency financial assets and financial liabilities, refer to Note V (45) “Foreign
Currency Monetary Items”.

3)  Other price risks

The Company holds equity investments in other listed companies. The
management believes that the market price risks in these investment activities
are acceptable.

The equity investments held by the Company in other listed companies are
listed below:

ltem Closing Balance | Opening Balance
Available-for-sale financial assets 6,045,719.99 i 12,872,227.49
Total ' 6,045.719.99 12,872,227.49

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of shortage of funds when an enterprise fulfills
its obligations settled by cash or other financial assets. The liquidity policy of



the Company is to ensure adequate cash to repay the debt due. The liquidity
risks are centrally controlled by the Finance Department of the Company. By
monitoring the cash balances, securities readily realizable, and rolling
forecasts of cash flow for the next 12 months, the Finance Department ensures
that the Company has sufficient funds to repay debts in all reasonably

foreseeable situations.

The financial liabilities of the Company are listed below by the due date of

undiscounted contractual cash flow:

- Closing Balance
Item
: | years

Short-term borrowing 1 355,394,742.72

Notes payable and accounts -
. 259,049,408.25

payable
Other payables ' 486,067,281,09
Non-current liabilities due 1
- 10,000,000.00
within one vear
Long-term borrowing ; ' 40,000,000.00 ‘
Total - 1,110,511,432.06 : 40,000,000.00

% Within | year ‘ 1-5 years Over 5 . Total

' 355,394,742.72
| 250,049,408.25

486,067,281.09

* 10,000,000.00

 40,000.000.00

1,150,511,432.06

: Opening Balance

ltem ' Within | year ., [-§ - Over
years  years

1

Short-term borrowing | 407,626,947.78

Note bl d 5 |
otes payavie an ACCOUNts ; 212,02',678-50 |
payable f : |

r H I

- - . “ .
Other payables ' 418,226,945.63

Non-current liabilities due within " ]
. 125,445,097.27 |

v
!

Total 1,163,320.669.18

one year

5

: Total

1 407,626,947.78
1 212,021,678.50

| 418,226,945.63

| _

z

125,445,097.27

3

1 1,163,320,669.18

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value

Fair value measurements are categorized into a three-level hierarchy, based on



the type of inputs to the valuation techniques used, as follows:

Level | inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for items
identical to the asset or liability being measured.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than the quoted prices in determined in level 1
that are directly or indirectly observable for that asset or liability.

level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs of the related assets or liabilities.

Each fair value measurement is categorized based on the lowest level input
that is significant to it.

L. Closing fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value

, Closing Fair Value

Measurement of

i ‘ ) " Level 3 Fair Total
~ Level | Fair Value Level 2 Fair Value |

Ttem Measurement  of Measurement  of

Value

I. Continuing
measurement of fair |

value 1 i

ilable~for- |
Avai a‘ble or-sale 6,045,719.99 . , . 6,045,719.99
financial assets I

(1) Debt instrurnenti
investments :

f
| U —— .- - R [

73] Equity ]
instrument b 6,045,719.99 . ’ 6,045,719.99

investments

§
i
{
|
i

(3) Other 5 : : ’

2 Basis for determining the market value of fair value of continuing and
non-continuing measurement of level 1 items

The Company determines the market price of level 1 fair value measurement
items based on the open price in the open equity market. The Company holds
more than 15 million shares in the subsidiary Canadian Zinc Corporation, the
market value of which is over 1.2 million Canadian dollars calculated based on
the closing price in Toronto Securities Exchange, 0.080 Canadian dollars per
share on December 31, 2018.

X. Related Parties and Related Transactions



1 Information about the parent company

| : : ; Voting

; ‘ Registered Shareholding;p atio of
Name %Place _OﬂNature 5 Capital %Of Parrentgpa‘.em

i‘lncorporatlonj (RMB §C0mpany !'Company

’ 1 10,000) (%) ;:
: (%)

Ranchengcheng ! ) Tnvestment i : .

:Ningbo :235,230100 125.08 i25.08
Far imanagement ! i’

Ultimate controller:

As of December 31, 2018, the ultimate controller of the Company was Mr.
Guo Changwei who holds 100% shares of Ransheng Wealth Capital
Management Co., Ltd. (“Ransheng Wealth”). Ransheng Wealth holds 80%
shares of Ransheng (Ningbo) Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.
(“Ransheng Equily and Fund™) which exercises control over Ranchengcheng
Far as a general partner.

As of December 31, 2018, Ningbo Meishan Bonded Port Zone Ransheng
Shengchang  Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Ransheng Shengchang™) holds 4.91% shares (45,612,401 shares) of the
Company, which is related to Ranchengcheng Far and constitute a person
acting in concert.

2. Subsidiaries of the Company
Refer to Note 7 “Interests in Other Entities™.
3 Joint ventures and associates

Refer to Note 7 “Interests in Other Entities” for the key joint ventures and
associates of the Company.

4 Other related parties

Name of Related Party * Relationship with the Company

Shenzhen Nanwu Bei'an Wealth Management: Controlled enterprise of former controlling

Co., Lid. ("Nanwu Bei'an Wealth™) - shareholder Wanwu Bel'an

|
i

;, .
Li Pusheng Former director of the Company

Shengjie (Beijing) Investment Consulting Co., Former director of the Company, Li Pusheng,
Ltd, ("Shengjie Investment") " is the Legal Representative.

Ransheng Shengchang ' Controlled by the same real controller

Shandong Bona Investment Co., Ltd. i Minority shareholder of the Company




5 Related transaction

(1).  Related transaction in purchasing/selling of goods, providing and receiving
services

None

(2).  Related transaction in entrusting or entrusted management/contracting
None

- (3). Related transaction in lease
None

(4). Related transaction in guarantee

As the guarantor:

: Guaranteed . Effective 3 \ . Guarantee Fulfilled or
Guarantee . ! Expiry Date |
: Amount - Date : not?
‘Zibe  Real ! CAprl 14, April 14, .
4. 94,000,000.00 prt pr No

Estate 2017 L2019

(5). Borrowing toffrom related party
None

(6).  Asset transfer and debt restricting of related party
None

(7). Remuneration of key management personnel

Item . This Period . Last Period

Remuneration of key management personnel {10,000) . 677.03 : 447.04

(8).  Other related transactions

1) As of December 31, 2018, the Company shall receive the principal of RMB
37,070,000.00 to be paid by PESI, and an amount of RMB 11,863,803.74 of
capital occupation fee, for which Nanwu Bei’an Wealth provides
unconditional joint and several guarantee.

2) As of December 31, 2018, the Company shall receive an earnest money of
RMB 549,056,000.00 from Li Xiaoming, for which Li Pusheng and Shengjie
Investment provide unconditional joint and several guarantee.

6. Receivables and payables of related party

None



XI. Commitments and Contingencies
1 Significant commitment
The Company has no commitment to be disclosed.
2 Contingencies
(1).  Guarantees between companies within the scope of consolidation

1) As of December 31, 2018, credit guarantees provided between
companies within the scope of consolidation (unit: 10,000)

' |  Balance of § Loan Maturity
Guarantor | Guaranteed : Lender . Guaranteed
- R | Date
: : Loan : ) )
. | Lixia Branch of, :
E;tt):te Real The Company : Jinan Rural  9,400.00 3 April 11,2019

" Commercial Bank

2)  Property-based mortgage guarantees provided between companies in the
scope of consolidation as of December 31, 2018 (unit: 10,000)

: Original Book IOutstanding[
Guarantor 'Guaranteed Mortgagee ;Subject Matter%Book Value of Amount o E'Maturity
of Mortgage  'Value of M .Guaranteed :
ortgage: Date
P . _Mortgage - ;Loan .
.. ‘Zhongrun ‘ :
;Lixia .
. : 'Branch, Comp-rehenswe ‘ .
Zibo Real;The Jinan Rural BUlding Real oo 0 00 627113 940000  120194-11
Estate ‘Company . 'Estate Project’ . !
. .Commercial : : :
; ; and Land Use! i a
; ‘Bank o !
i L . Rights : f R
‘No. 1 - 10 oﬂ !
: e #1 Commercial: ' -
. - "Weihai et ‘ ] :
Zibo Real The Commercial SN 115 306 16 9,052.69 '5,000.00  '2023-11-30
Estate  :Company North  Area,; :
: Bank : . {
. ' Zhongrun ; j

‘Chinese Town

(2).  Other contingent liabtlities and their financial effects

Zibo Real Estate, a subsidiary of the Company, provides phased guarantee for
the commercial housing purchaser’s mortgage loans according to the business
practices of real estate enterprises. As of December 31, 2018, the subsidiaries
of the Company had undertaken phased guarantees totaling to RMB 93.247
million.

(3).  Pending litigation

1} Due to the dispute arising from construction contract, Shandong
Xincheng Construction Co., Ltd. filed a lawsuit with the court on December
24, 2018, and applied for property preservation. This case involved an amount



XII.

XIII.

of RMB 12,500,000.00. As of December 3I, 2018, an amount of RMB
1,132,540.07 was frozen and the houses of 792.80 square meters with the book
value of RMB 2,884,500 were attached by the court. The case has not heard as
of the date of this report.

2y  Refer to Note XIII (7) 1 for the receivables from Li Xiaoming.

3) Refer to Note XIIT (8) 8 for the receivables from PESI.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Receivables from Shandong Ansheng Asset Management Group Co., Ltd.

Shandong Ansheng Asset Management Group Co., Ltd. (“Ansheng Assets”)
owes a total of RMB 369.3 million to the Company for transfer of shares and
creditor's rights. On June 25, 2018, the Company, Ansheng Assets, and
Shandong Zhongrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as
“Zhongrun Real Estate”) signed the Maximum Mortgage Contract for Transfer
of Commercial Property, under which the commercial property located in the
western section of Zhongrun Century City Commercial Property at No. 13777,
Jingshi Road, Lixia District, linan, Shandong with an estimated value of
RMB430,197,400, was transferred to the Company to pay the entire amounts
owed by Ansheng Assets.

On January 23, 2019, the property for repayment of debt was transferred from
Zhongrun Real Estate to Jinan Xingrui Commercial Operation Co., Ltd.
(“Xingrui”). On January 29, 2019, the Company, Ansheng Assets, Zhongrun
Real Estate and Xingrui signed a Supplemental Agreement to the Maximum
Mortgage Contract for Transfer of Commercial Property, under which the
property was invested into Xingrui. On January 30, 2019, Zhongrun Resources
and Zhongrun Real Estate signed the “Equity Transfer Agreement” with
Xingrui,

On January 31, 2019, all the registration changes procedures with the
industrial and commercial management authority was completed and Xingrui
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Other Significant Events

Correction of accounting error in previous period
None

Debt restructuring

None

Asset swap

None



4 Annuity plan

None

5 Discontinued operation
None

6 Segment information

(1).  Basis for determination and accounting policies of report segmentation

The Company determines the operating segments based on the internal
organizational structure, management requirements, internal reporting system,
and determines the reporting segments based on the operating segments and
discloses the segment information.

The Company has identified three reporting segments by product and
geographical location: Zibo Real Estate engaged in real estate development,
VGML Plc engaged in overseas gold mining, and other companies engaged in
gold mining or other mineral investment and exploration activities in China.

(2). Financial information of report segment

2018: Unit: RMB 10,000

Jtem Zibo Real VGM Ple Other. Inter-segment Total
o .+ Esate companies . setoff | o
Operating income l4 551.46 35,094.56 : o ) 349,§46.02
Including: income from foreign 14,5146 3509456 | 149,646.02
transactlon ) P L L .
Income from domestlc 14,551 46 i [ , 14,551.46
transaction ; T ‘: . o .
Income from foreign transaction’ 35,094.56 : 135,094.56
Income from inter-segment ) ;
iransaction Co o , B .
Operating cost '14,877.11 31 ,807. 52 i B ;46 ,684.63
Operating prgﬁﬂloss) B :-3 ,376.26  -6,356.65 19,504.12 ],?45 16 ;] 71637
Total non-current assets :121,690. 54 71,112.56 r81 ,336.81 !—61 362.39 éllz 777.52
tnckuding:  total  domestic, 69054 1 1,739.49 8,234.94 141,664.97
non-currént assets ) 1
Total foreign non-current assets ) T1,112.56 ‘6_9,597.32 3-69,597.33 7l ll2 55
Total assets 595,501.62 :80,456.66 222,943.02 :-145,625.23 .253,276.07

Total liabilities 51,248.34 54,850.02 1122,502.93 -86,481.26 i142,120.03




2017: Unit: RMB 10,000

;Zibo Realé iOther ‘Inter-segme 5
Item ; iIVGM Plc ) : iTotal
:Estate ; ‘companies | ntsetoff
Operating income 3931614 '37,563.21 :28.87 ' :

Including: income from foreign’

76,908.22

i
i
: i
- I3 - B H
t ¢ H
E

) 39316.14  .37,563.21 128.87 76,908.22
transaction ; : ;
income from domestic transaction 139,316.14 : t28.87 i 139,345.01

- | - i - b
income from foreign transaction i37,563.21 | ' 137,563.21
Income from inter—segment:
transaction '
Operating cost ;36,778.37 132,023.07 ]12.04 - 68,813.48
Operating profit (loss) 513203 -89542  -42.828.64 181465 -47,04234
Total non-current assets 20,955.52 ]66,249.04 '205,630.84 .'187’303'30 . | 05,5372. 10
Including: total domestic, ( .
20,955.52 1151,965.16 *-134,943.69 37,976.99

non-current assets ' | : .
Total foreign non-current assets 66,249.04 '53,665.67 '-52,359.62 167,555.09
Total assets 90,969.77  77,827.50 342,608.29 -256,667.83 254,737.73
Total liabilities 43,330.08  50,331.49 200,762.08 .-148,610.85 145,812.80

Other important issues that have impact on the decisions of investors

(1). In 2015, the Company issued non-public shares to acquire 100% shares
of Iron Ore International (Mongolia) Co., Ltd. (“Iron Mine International™),
Mingsheng Co., Ltd., Mongolian New Lale Gott [ron Ore Co., Ltd.
(collectively as the “targets”). After being passed by the Board of Directors,
the Company paid the actual controller Li Xiaoming an earnest money of 80
million US dollars.

On July 25, 2017, considering the domestic and international mining markets,
capital market and financing environment undergo significant changes, and
term authorized by the sharcholders' meeting has expired, as passed and
approved by the Board of Directors, the Company and project partner Li
Xiaoming decided to terminate the non-public offering related matters.

On July 12, 2017, Li Xiaoming issued a confirmation letter under which he
agreed to return the earnest money of $80 million to the Company in full
within 120 days. Shengjie Investment issued a statement letter stating that it
would continue to provide unconditional joint and several guarantee for the



$ 80 million to be returned by Mr. Li Xiaoming.

In May 2018, the Company filed an arbitration application with the China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission on the ground that
Li Xiaoming failed to return the carnest money as agreed. After the hearing
was conducted by the arbitral tribunal, China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission ruled on March 7, 2019 that Li Xiaoming
should return the earnest money of US$80 million to the Company and bear
the corresponding interest, for which Shengjie (Beijing) Invesiment
Consulting Co., Ltd. assumed joint and several liabilities.

As of December 31, 2018, the earnest money totaled to RMB 549,056,000.00,
for which a bad debt provision of RMB 109,811,200.00 was made according
to the account age method. The book value was RMB 439,244 800.00. In the
current period, the exchange income was RMB 26,320,000.00 due to the
translation of statement.

As of the date of this report, the Company has not received any principal and
interest repaid by Li Xiaoming.

(2). Creditor’s right to Qilu Real Estate Co., Ltd.

On November 7, 2018, Jinan Intermediate People's Court ruled that the
properties at No. 205 and 207 on Zhuhai Road in Wendeng District, and the
associated land use rights which valued 98,280,216.00 in total should be
transferred to the Company for repayment of debt. As of the date of the audit
report, the ownership transfer formalities have not been completed yet, and the
bad debt provision has not been reversed. As of December 31, 2018, the book
balance of the debt of Qilu Real Estate Co., Ltd. was 166, 943,000.04, with an
equivalent bad debt provision 166,943,000.04 made. The book value was
RMB 0.00.

In February 2019, the People’s Court of Wendeng District of Weihai accepted
the bankruptcy and reorganization appliication filed by the guarantor Shandong
Shengji Investment. For the outstanding amount owed by Qilu Real Estate, the
Company had to report the creditor’s rights to the administrator and recover it
according to the bankruptcy and reorganization.

(3). As of the report date, due to the policies including pilot of Giant Panda
National Park in Sichuan province, the extension of prospecting right of
Shilonggou Gold Mine (certificate No.: T01120090602031500), mining right
of Yinchang Gold Mine (Certificate No.: C5100002009084120033612), and
exploration right of gold mine (Certificate No.: T51120080402005069) of the
subsidiary Sichuan Pingwu was not granted. As of December 31, 2018, the
original book value of the prospecting right of Shilonggou Gold Mine was
9,782,241.97 yuan, for which an impairment provision of 9,782,241.97 yuan
was made and the book value was 0 yuan. The original book value of the



mining rights of Yinchang Gold Mine was RMB 26,652,000.00, for which an
accumulated amortization of RMB 26,652,000.00 was accrued and the book
value was RMB 0. The book value of exploration right of gold mine was RMB
65,610,508.26. As of the report date, the application for extension change of
the mining rights of Yinchang Gold Mine and the exploration rights has not
been finally approved.

(4). The shares pledge contract between Ranchengcheng Far (the controlling
shareholder of the Company) and Tianfeng Securities Co., Ltd. was extended
to January 17, 2020. As of the report date, Ranchengcheng Far holds
233.000,000.00 shares of the Company, accounting for 25.08% in the total
share capital of the Company. The accumulated shares under pledge have
reached 233,000,000.00 shares, accounting for 100% of the shares it holds.

(5). On January 28, 2019, the short-term borrowing 250 million issued by
Muping Branch of Yantai Bank to the Company became mature. The
borrowing was guaranteed by Shandong Xinchao Energy Co., Ltd. By Shares.
At present, the Company is applying for a mortgage loan of RMB 250 million
to Yantai Bank with the commercial properties held by Xingrui. The mortgage
procedure has been completed. As of the report date, the loan was carried out
as scheduled.

(6). As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding borrowings issued by
non-financial institutions to the Company which have overdue reached over
157 million yuan, including 140 million yuan to Cui Wei and 17 million to Liu
Jiaging. On March 4, 2019, the Company signed a "Settlement Agreement”
with Liu Jiaqing. As of the report date, the Company had paid 6.50 million
yuan to Liu Jiaqing.

(7). On May 27, 2018, the 41st Meeting of the 8th Term of Board of
Directors of the Company passed and approved the “Proposal on the Plan for
Swap of Major Assets, Issuance of Shares, and Acquiring Assets by Cash,
Raising Associated Funds and Related Transactions of Zhongrun Resources
Investment Corporation” and other refated proposals. After the reorganization
plan was launched, considering the recovery process of other reccivables of
the listed companies and the significant fluctuation of stock price after trade
resumption, the two parties made communications on the scope of asset swap,
price of issued shares, and the number of shares issued. On October 24, 2018,
the Company held the 4th Meeting of the 9th Term of Board of Directors on
which the Proposal on the Plan for Swap of Major Assets, Issuance of Shares,
and Acquiring Assets by Cash, Raising Associated Funds and Related
Transactions of Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation (Revised)” was
passed. As of the report date, the audit data on the target assets has expired,
and the two parties had to supplement the audit and assessment data. After the
new audit and assessment is completed, the Company will convene the Board



XIV.,

of Directors meeting again to review the formal plan for major asset
restructuring and related documents.

(8). Receivables from PESL. In order to promote the non-public offering of
the Company for the purpose of acquiring Mongolian Dormmyn Gobi Iron Ore
Company, Mongolian Dornyn Gobi Iron Ore Company proposed in August
2015 to borrowing funds from the Company, to meet the capital needs in the
preliminary exploration stage of Dornyn Gobi Iron Ore. Therefore, the two
parties signed the “Tripartite Maximum Borrowing Contract for Development
Expenses of Mongolian Dornyn Gobi Iren Ore Project”. According to the
Contract and the instructions of Mongolian Dornyn Gobi Iron Ore Company,
the Company has borrowed RMB 237.07 million to PESI. After the borrowing
expired, the Company required PESI to repay the borrowing because the
Company has stopped the issuing of shares for the Mongolian Dornyn Gobi
Iron Ore Project. But PESI failed to repay the borrowing. In November 2018,
the Company filed a lawsuit with the Jinan Intermediate People's Court. As of
December 31, 2018, PLSI still owed the Company RMB 48,933,800,
including principal RMB 37,070,000 and interest of RMB 11,863,800, for
which a bad debt provision of RMB 9,389,800 was made and the book value
was RMB 39,544,000. As of the report date, the case had not been heard and
the Company had not received any principal or interest repaid by PESI.

Notes to Major Items in Financial Statements of Parent Company

Other receivables

Item } Closing Balance Opening Balance
interest recei\;a;b le ‘ -
Dividend receivable

Other receivables - 1,363,678,140.18 7 I,l26,7§4,773.6f’.

Total " 1,363,678,140.18 ] 1,126,794,773.62
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2)

In combinations, other receivables with bad debt provision in account age
method:

Closing Balance

Account Age !

* Other receivables i Bad _df_bbt E Proportion
: : provision (%)
Within 1 year 3,335,840.44 Cl66.792.03 | 5.00
122 years 3,969,949.73 139699497 10.00
2-3 years 594,491,732.01  118,898,346.40 4 20.00
3-4 years o ? 30.00
4-5 3;ears : | N 1’ 40.00
Over 5 years ' 53,170,458.80 53,170,458.80 100.00
Total | 654,967,980.98 | 172.632,502.20 -

Other receivables in the combination with bad debt provision made in other
methods

- Closing Balance

Name of Combination Bad bebt ' ‘
. Book Balance , . - Proportion
: Provision
Combination | 881,239,720.54 :
Total . 881,239,720.54 :

Bad debt provision made, carried over, or reversed in the current period

In the current period, the amount of bad debt provision made is 62,475,630.82
and that reversed is 210,099,348.65.

3} Other receivables classified by nature

) t Closing Book | Opening Book
Nature of Receivables : !
' Balance i Balance
l '
Transfer of equities and creditor’s rights | 536,243,000.04 i 598,622,348.69

Current account with other non-affiliates ' 56,326,195.08 ' 53,065,569.20
Deposit 549,056,000.00  : 522,736,000.00
Iron ore construction fee and capital occupation ]

fee

. 48,933.803.74 | 48.933,803.74




Book : O

Nature of Receivables i g:;z:i E B:leal::f Book
] i
' Deposit and security 471,878.00 ’ t 471,878.00
Borrowing from petty cash 180,104.16 133,526.83
- Social ins-urance and provident fund ‘ 103,030.1;6 . 132,236.24

Current account with other affiliates . 511,939,720.54

Total

1 1,703,253.732.42

. 389,898,720.99

| 1,613,994,083.69

3

4} Top five other receivables by closing balance:

Name Nature Closing Balance ;Account Age
LiXiaoming ~ Deposit  549,056,000.00 2—3years
‘Within 1 year:,

~ 'Current 282,671,670.28;

Zhongrun Mining L :
account with 1-2 years:

Development Co., 1508,657,709.42 ;
Lid related 168,946,903.57;

' ‘parties 2-3 years:’
L 5703913557
Shandong ‘Transfer of ‘, 5
Ansheng Asset shares  and: ’

] :369,300,000.00 Over 5 years .

Management creditor’s : f
Group Co., Ltd. grights N 3

{Transter of:
Qilu Real Estateishares and

; . . 166,943,000.04 'Over 5 years
Co., Ltd. creditor’s | :

grights ' | i

Tron ore:

.construction | 1-2 years:

fee nd' 3,969,949.73; |
PESI Co,, Ltd. b 48,933,803.74 | :

i‘capltal . 12 years:

’occupation ﬁ ‘44 963 ,854.01
Total 1,642,890,513.20 ‘

Proportion

in Total of Closing

Other jBalance of Bad
Receivables Debt Provision
(%) . .
32.24 1109,811,200.00

|

|

|
21.68
; !
19.80 '166,943,000.04
2.87 '9,389,765.78

73 B
96.45 286,143,965.82




2 Long-term equity investment

iClosing Balance

Ttem ‘impairment

|

§Opening Balance

: 1
i

Tax refund or exemption by the authorities without approval power

or without formal approval decument

i : lilmpairment
Bock Balance | . iBook Value Book Balance - . iBook Value
! |provision : _provision
) ; i ﬁ !
Investment in’ ! : !
1613,623,797.01 ;613,623,797.01  1613,623,797.01 1613.623.797.01
subsidiaries i ; !
Total j6|3,623,797.01 E613.623,797.0| 613,623,797.01 :613.623,797.01
(1).  Investment in subsidiaries
:' : ; . Impairment | Closing
. i Increase ' Decrease ' . l .. ;
Opening : .  ° : Closing Provision  Balance of
Investee . In this in this ! . .
Balance . ) ) Balance . Accrued in ! Impairment
- Period  Period Lo . ..
; ' this Peried = Provision
Zibo Real Estate 113,623,797.01 1113,623,797.01,
Zhongrun :500,000,000.00 ’500,000,000.00‘?
Mining ’
Development !
Co., Ltd. |
Shandong
Qiansheng !
Economic  and;
Trade Co., Ltd. ' ( ;
Shengyuan Jiyej ‘ ' :
Investment
Management
(Hangzhou) Co.,’ :
Lid. : '; é : ;
Total :613,623,797.01' 1 '613,623,797.01: ,
XV. Supplementary Information
1 Current non-recurrent profits and losses
Item Amount Ii Remarks
Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets - -1,298,910.73 :




Item

Government subsidies recorded into the current profit and loss
(except for the government subsidies that are closely related to the i
business of the enterprise and granted according to the quota:
required by national uniform standards)

Capital occupational feed charged to non-financial institutions
recorded into the current profit and loss

Income generated when the investment cost for acquiring a
subsidiary, joint venture or cooperative enterprise is lower than the ’
due fair value of identifiable net assets of the investee '

Profit and loss from exchange of non-monetary assets '

Profit or loss from assets that are entrusted to others to invest or,
manage i

Asset impairment provisions made due to force majeure such as

natural disasters

Profit and loss from debt restructuring

Corporate reconstructing expenses such as staff resettlement costs -
and integration costs !

Profit or loss due to the difference between obviously unfair price *
and fair value ’

i

Met profit or loss in the current period of subsidiaries resulting from
combination of subsidiaries under common control from the .
beginning of period to combination date

Profit or loss due to contingencies irrelative with normal operating

. ;
business {
1
i
1

Profit or loss from the changes in fair values of financial assets and
liabilities held for trading, and investment income from disposal of .
financial assets and liabilities held for trading and available-for-sale 5
financial assets, except the effective hedging business related to the :

normal operating business of ZRC
Reversal on impairment provision of account payable for which the |
impairment test is done separately ;

- f
Profit or less from loans entrusted to external parties '

Profit or loss from changes in fair value of investment real estate for |

Amount

! Remarks
P
|
i

[ ——

. 210,099,348.65 |




Item Amount | Remarks

[P

which the subsequent measurement adopts the fair value method

Effect on the current profit arid loss due to adjusting the current !

profit and loss on a lump-sum basis in accordance with tax or

et it e

accounting laws and regulations

Income of trustee fee for entrusted operation

[

Other non-operating incomes and expenses 12,690,789.37

Other profit or loss items falling in the definition scope of |

26,320,000.00

non-recurrent profit or loss

Effect on income tax

Effect on minority shareholder -6,682.612.20

Total ' . 241,128,615.09 .

2 Return on equity and earnings per share

Earnings per share (yuan)
Weighted average . . .
Diluted

Profit of Report Period return-on-equity Basic earnings '
ratio (%) per share | earnings per
3 share
Net profit attributable to ordmnary . ‘ :
. 4.09 . 0.0454 : 0.0454

shareholders
Net profit attributable to common - :
shareholders  after deduction of -19.30 02141 - -0.2141

non-recurrent profit or loss

Zhongrun Resources Investment Corporation (ZRC)

(official seal)

April 25, 2019



